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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy
assets produce enough
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carbon saving is over 822,600

carbon tonnes this year

Numbér of loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, cn
average 182 borrowers
n the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK
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Chief Executive's review

Qur Group was in a
the incxdown resp NS

et
business has cortnued

olid posizion coming cut of
Covig-19, ard ou

10 DErform robusily

throughiout the year. Tz year has seen corme

uniorecasted growth in value of certain divisors

Di’.mﬁ!’lly ariver u‘y the 1ncrease in eTergy pnces

Fern Tracing Lirmited ["trne Company” or tegether
witn Its subsidaries 'the Group’) ta'gﬂtf cansstert
ng ter
steady and predictable growth, this is

growth for srarehotders over the io with a

focus or
carticuiarly imporant during more challenging
condiucns. We have a diversifed and

cconomeC

mature business befting a Grauo with more than
12 years of trading hiziery ard arri
compnses rmore than 300 comparies
opcrated 1 arange of seCiors Gver many years
generating stcady long-=nm growth for our
harenhclders. We anerate in esse~tial zectors that
We GXLect W perform sie

volatility,

aally tnrough market

hie to add
catonina

ortumities in

Frorm this secure nase we have oeen a

neremental exopansion and divers:

measurad way thrawgh seekirg out o
~ew adjzcent sectors. These sectors provide us
with a platform "o continue to expand ir line w in
our exisiing strategy, 1o
enersy, property lending,
fibre and house bulldng divisions. We have graown
to be a 7 our maost
estanbs~ed sectors, oroducng £ 2% of tre UK's
sclar ene 1 7% of the UK's onshore wind

energy ouiput, ana bullding a £381m srort and

day, our Groun comprises

nealtthcare infrastruciure,
signifcant greserce withi
gy and
mec-LUm term lending sus ness that facilirates the

construction and improvernant of homes

throughout the UK

The Cormcany's chare orice delivered 10% growr
cver the past 12 montrs, well aheaa of our target
ranruT. Tre extraordirary growth
s attiribuiakle 1o our energy division, wrich ©as
ceneftted from a sigrificant increase in long-tenm
pnice forecasts and energy forward rates

i additer o inflation. Tnis

increase :n the value of cur erergy divsicn was

suppored by sol.d operat.orat performance across

all seciors ard some organ'c Growth nonewer

SEClOors.

We remain a supportve emp\oyen with rnore tran
1.694 s the
own and operm =
or hiundreds mmore peop

fuil-time staf acr businesses that we
and indrect employment
prov.ded & tnrougn

Cntracis trat we Nave in place

A reflection on our year

Dur business raised £404m “rom
delvered con
deployrrent, resulting in £712rm in revenue

£425m; ana net

rvestors this year,

2nt reverues whele growing caoital

genergt ed across tre Grol & 2020

£2.219m (2021 £1,888m

resiated)

The finarcial
coerat-ng prchit bek

swterments for the year show a»
3m

cre tax of 24 aggmw oL

expected cutcome of a smail a “tng proft Thiz

robust parformance 1s & diect result of energy
produced oy the group berg scld for igher prices
during the year Arnost 60% of
COMpnses renewanle erergy generat ng assets such
whicn provide
‘.temona;ty

cur buziness
as solar eregy
long-
diversified acrozs a

siies ard wind farms,

@ revenye streams. Thase are
ol

range of tech es o mitigate

olog.e
agains ¢ fic sector and

conbute towards steady predictabe

U poor performance ir a spe
share prce
growth, nowever their values can stii be impacied

by changes in

prong and demand We have seen
conzecutive and matetia: increases ir iong term
energy price forecasis and erergy ferward rates
guwobally over the last 15 morths as the giobal
economy recovers from e O

T alterrative soore

Our asseis
year w 1 the anqu

ursd ctions, as we
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Chief Executive’s review

rmarkels and starting ConstrLCuon on a arge wind
farm in Adstralia At the start of the yea” we added
ites o our reserve power division

~

which brings us up to 28 sites ntotal lcomparad to

rine add ttonal s

ter sites for mmost of 20210 These siies have

performed anesd of expectanons, cenerating
EET2A of £E26rm (2021 E1m) during the year

OQur s cstablished borrass
division continues to perfarm weli and haS

coossfuland wol ¢

deliverad stabie returns since acquisition in 2015,
Tnis year. | have been partcularly pleased o see
strong performance at cur newest Liomass site in
Snetterton, tast Anglia, which was acqured in Apri
vaiuanle addition (o the

d a Waste-
to-Energy ‘acility currently under construction in
Ayrshire, The facility has been in deveopment for
three years and will be capable of processing cover
285,600 tonnes per annum of non-recyclabie

2021, proving o e a

businzss, During the year we purchased

heusehold, commercial and industrial waste wh.ch
wouid otherwise be sent to lanchil or exported
Tnis wit generaie 17 MVVG of low carbon electricity,
the first
vaste-to-enargy proectin
ectec compieton dale is

encugh w cower 30,000 nomes. [twill be
large-scale, S:,J"‘Stdy free v
vesterr Scotland ard pro

i early 2024,

Over recent years, many of our enargy assels have
buted @
es. Trus is

been under construction whicr has contr
our previousty repcrted accounting los
tyoical of such businesses during growth phase
even wner cash generative, becaJse finance costs
. such as depreciation,
exceeded revenues. This division nas now reached
our target size and sector split

and zccounting crarges

Accorcingly tnis year | am p.eased to renori an
accourtng profit before tax of ££8m against cur
budgeted small accounting proat This slghtly
larger than expected profitis due o the maturty of
the portfolio zna higher enargy prces; re
increasad revenue from cur energy div sion as well

sullimg in

ac an nfrease

ininflatior {as exp ained Below)

Our property lending dLsiness ma<es up arc.nd
27% of the Group and comprises short and medium
term secured loans to experienced property
professionais This eswblished part of our business
continued to perforrn well following a short penod
of slow down ausing Covia-19 when we
intenticrially chose to write fewer oans. O
lcar book was 182 loans this year w0 UK borrowers

7 average

Our ignding civizion has aways cperated at
cornservative loan to value levels (Delow 70%), |
order that it maintains accese w valiabe securéty if
trere is a reduction in property vatues. This strategy
has served the Group well snce incept.o= 12 years
300, and 7 has operated through pe-ods of change
SOy a' tmes The Group is faking a naturally
cadtious approach when assessing rew lending
opportunities in light of the changirg econom:c
outlook. To date, the Group has lent £2 2bn of
preperty lcans s nee inceptior in 2010, suffer ng
onty £5rm in capital losses. This strerg track recornd
s e resalt of our careful approach in this sector,
comprising d:sciplined due diligence, conservat ve
loan-to-value ratics and an aoility and willingress 1o
reduce activity in this sector during imes of
econorric uncertainty, We wilt continue to adop!t
his approach throughout the comirg year

The heaithcare division makes up arcund 4% cf the
Group and is broadly performing well Oor
retrement vilages tusiness, Rangeford doldings
Limited {"Rargeford”) continued o sell apartments
at three s tes, commenced construction of a fourth
village 'n Chertsey, and acguired a hfth location
rnear Carmbridge during the year Sales at the
Chertsey site are expected to commrence in 2024,
while constructor at the Cambricdge sie s
expected to start in 2023 with the firsf sales
commencing n 2026

Cur fbre divis cn was estabiished in 2019 and
rermains an area of growth for the Group, now
compriaing of six aperating busnessas. Our
residential businesses, Jurass.c Fibre, Swisn Fiore,
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Giganet and Allpoints Fibre are Lulaing ultrafast
‘fibire to the premises” broadband rnetworks n

regions of the UK which nave peen overlooked by
larger cperators Giganet provides connectv iy ©
romes and businessas across the UK using CryFibre
1 Vitnf s a sofoware

compary wrich has developed

ard OQoeqrescn infrasiructure &
develogm
progpnetary software to allow Internet Serv ce
Froviders o el cornectivity over whalesale enab.ec
retworks, inciud ng Alkpo nis ~ibre. Vorboss s the
UK's only dedicated enterprice fibre rebwork to focus
on providing connectivity 1o businesses in London.

Irs the yaar, cur resicgenual finre buzinesses
continued o nvest cacital in expasding ther
networks ir the Home Counties, the South and
Southwest of Engtand, ard a-e now crboarding
custorners to their networks, generaing recurng
revenues for tre Group, Our state-of -wre- 2
netyworks are able o meet cusiomer dermnand for
higher broadband speeas reguired 35 3 result of
micre woerking-from-home and increacsed ucage of
video-on-demana sery ces. in London, Vorooss has
also conturued tc buld and nas mstalisd over
500k of fibre waith a commitment to offer 10Gbps
fibre to Lp w0 25,000 tusiresses 1~ Centra: Lordo

y 2027

Whiist our fibre division remains in a growth prase
for the next 3-5 years wo GO Not exgect it to reoart
an accourtng proit.

Towards the enc of the year, we added a new

oros rty develoner 10 the Group, witn the accuicition
f Elivia Homres ("Eivia’) for £E85m. Zlivia is ar
taohsrﬂ-ed nouse buider develonirg mic-rar<et
farn'ly homes 1 London commuter townsz and

™
(%2 ]

vilages Wriie this reoresents a very sall part of the
& meatured way over
13te target 1o deliver

inflation and Interest rates
The higher rate of inflation experiencea this year

1 has beer resgonsicle for some of the

: cutperformance against expectations in the
Company's share orice HM Treasury forecast that
~igh nflatonis likely 10 be present untit 2025, as a
result we expect o recewve more revenue for the

energy generated within our energy divisicon, and &
migher value from the government subsigies that
some of our erergy sites beneft from, increas rg

thie value of those sites. However, a short perico of
~igh nflaton such as forecast nas very Jttle effect
on the rate at waich 172 Group s expected o grow
This is hecause the rerewacle energy sites we own
derive ther value from discourteg projected future

cashflows over re tme they are expected w0

I3

m
opeae for, 1 mca‘\.‘y 2C years or more, If tne

out.ook for long-term inflaticr were 1o increase, the
8

rapact on our share ornce should oe positive
e tre

secause it wo reveriue gach of our

D

The expected rse ininterest rates is forecast
raturr to normal gfter a sigrnificant penod of very
low rates. The mmediate imasact of this on cur

susiness is expected 1o be broadly neutral since
cJr Grous s intertionaly structurad so as not to
experieme sgriizant value erosicn when interest
i orates crnange Ye continae o take a cautious

! approach wthin our le ending business where the
fsing interest rates are felt mare closely, and we
~ave the ability 1o reduce the numoer of loans
we writz, or alter tne risk orofile of our loans
through reducing losn w value r2lios or paJsing
aclivity In certan carts of tne marxet should tnat

fee! aporoorate
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Current trading and outloock

Since the year end, the Groug has contned to
perforT steadily from an cperationat perspective
and in ine with our expectat'ons awsit we have
seen share phnce growtn anead of arget aus to the
conbrued norease ir long erm energy orice
forecasts. Cur growth targets for the Group aver
e medium and lorg term rerna n unchanged, ard
we contnu
business that s capasle of delivering more

predictable growt for sharenolders.

= faocus on maintaining a dwvers.fed

Tne recently announced Electricity Generator _evy

"EGL witrin the 2023 Firance Bill, wil have an

n’ﬁpag\ on the return our erfefgy
ortfoiic over the next 5 years This is furthe

5 generated fro

dwscussed ir the group finance review on page 27,

ntirues to
eployment in this
i We ‘ocus on short term

Qur property lending business co
perferm strongly, with ncrease
sector since the year end
wans (cur average carrent loan term i3 17 mortns)
which enables us to adagt to changes in oulook
swiftly, we feel this is particularly important in the

currert ecoromic climae.

Performarce in cur healthcare division continues
to be stable, and we continue © remain positive
about the opporiunities o improve performance .n

this sector,

Since year end, we have conunued o build out our

fbre networks, with construction tracking in line
Wit our expectato-s We Ccortinle (o review
opportutites for both orgawic and inorganic
growtr supsortng our exising management teams
in delivering tris strategy

in Decemper 2022 we have acqu.res the rights to
£25m of right to use mobile lcenses fromrm Three
UK, thus makirg the first step tows-ds becoming a»

robile virtual network cperator

Qur mix of buziness are
and may evolve further over the v

s has devele ped over time
s ahead, driven
by the averarching imoportance we pace on
reeting tris objectuves of our sharehslders. Tnis
should rot be read as any ‘naication, of a
change in the sectors in which we opera
reflection of the role payad by the strate

1

rmandate in protecting sharehciders' wnte'es

"Qur mix of business areas has
developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance
What we do

Fern Trading Limited {"Ferry’) is the parent company

ot nearly 220 subsidiares (together the "Group™). Our

Group cperates across five key areas: energy,
healthcare, lencing, Hbre and house building. Over
the past tweive years we have bulll a carefuléy
diversified group of operating businesses mnat are
well posxt\or"ed to delver lorg-term value and
pradiclable arowtri for our shareholders

1. Energy division
We generale power from sustamanle sources ang

el the erergy pro-::‘uced either directly to industr.al

consumers or 1 large

etworks. Mamy of cur
renewable energy sites qualify

Cr government

ncanives, which represent ar adoiticnal of

o1

SLIc

(&

ncoma We have also uthised our expartise Ir
renewaple energy o consiruct ‘acili.es ‘or sale or
ongoing operation. At year end ‘ne Group had

21 sites under corstruction

2. Healthcare division
We provide haomes and lessure facilites to our
ageing population, and privete hospitals wiigh

orovide high-qua ~ealthcare services across

operationa: s'es in e UK.

Solar, wind,

2. Lending division

We end on g snor and medium term, secured
hasis tc a Large rurmber ¢f property professionals

v de financ+g o enable other Lusiness
{2 build assets ard other residentatl anc

commercial properiies.

4, Fibre division

We own and operate fore broadbard networks
across variods areas of tne JK. We buid the
networks and Correct trem to homes and
pusinesses to provide our custorners with ultraast
fiore brecadband

5. Home building division
During the year, we successfully entered the house

v

suilding sector, acquirirg Ylivia Homes whicn Fas a

Q,

strong track record of developng homes im a
sustainable manner The corrpany 1s a fuli-service
sroperty developsr, mearing it provides services
from thie design, to the erwgmeomrug ana thern firal
CONBUUTION 10 ansure th very of cuality

Warkmanseio

. Property lending, Retirernent Ultrafast fibre . .
ia?igf{?llasasa.s devetopment vitlages, private broadband across ReSIdbelE:(ljai;house
gas, financing hospitals the UK 9

raserve power

Zomstra e

Constrwsr or oeratong




2 | STRATEGIC REFORT E

Our business at a glance

The strength of our Craup's strategy is in both its ! businesses with comprehensive cusiness plans and
operaticnal diversity and the return profile of these 1 strong management teams This enatles us 1o
i ligleN]

busiresses. Our lending business provides fexiniity canunue to diversify our ousines

5

and strong rewirns over the short term, while our compromis-ng on the guatity of our operatons

energy, healthcare, fibre and Rome buildirg Owver the past threa years. we have successfuly :

divisions offer vist'lty and stabiliy of returns cver
|

the longer term, Poowr six companias with exciting plars to detiver

ertared the fibre oroadcand secior and we now ;

. . ¢ oulirafast broadband across the UL
The szale of ou” business is a key strength, enabing : B :

a
m
[}

us to acouire large-scae estapl Qperaticns as
t

well as tne ocpportunity to enter ~ew seCio s witn H
rrinirnal risk to the whaole Group by selecting :

Healthcare 1%

Sector split’

Wind 22% -—.

Property 27%

Fern's sector
allocation

5~ Reserve power 2%
- Solar 1%

~- Fibre 5%

Sotar 20% -

© Healthcare 4%

Reserve power 6% = " Landfil gas and biomass 9%

Other 3%

B B Owning and operating assets 69%
M8 Lending 31%

Sector split 1s given by va.ue, as reprasented on the comoany balance sheet of Ferr: Trading Limited.
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Our business at a glance

Where we operaie

We are proud nat the businesses

within cur Group maxe a posive
| contribution to soaety, from
onerat™g clear energy o the /\\
reation of homes and e provision

[l

of guality heathcare irfrastructure, /}_‘

ad

P

Wnd faris

Retrerrent villzges

OBE Y@=

Fospitas

-
=

Fibre netwaorks

T

1ake Cur eXpertse o excit ng ooporiLnities cvarsgas, nclucirg constructtd sclar and wing farms i
a r

Australia, Frarce, ire.an

5 We've grown Cor exnertise in these sectors © the UK, we've beer abg 1o Lse Sur noustty krowledse to
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Making o differenze

We are prous to operate a Group that make
positive connbubion (e soc'ely across tne UH
generating rerewab'e energy, providing gquality
nealtncare infrastructure and retrement ivirg ard
delivering high-spesd broadbanc 1o ungerserved
reas of the country

Q)

Energy

We currenty owr 220 energy siles, produc ng
3750W a yvear That's enoush ereargy 1o power over
a miilon hormes

Qur combination of technologies solar, wing,
reserve power, biomass and landfl gas
ol helpng the UK 1o

comgiement eacn otner wetl,

meet its energy targets irespectve of the weathe

Tre Fern Commun Ty Fund is a sacial enterprise run
by the Group, which works 1¢ distrbute community
funds generated fram our wind farms, This year, the
rded £1.4m to local

community groups, supporteg 12 lo
swdenis through cur Student Scholarshin
and provided a winter fuel subz:dy to 706 resdents

wha are local to the Group's assets

Fern Community Fund bas awa
cal uriversity
Fund,

Healthcare

QOur relrement villages provide high-quality,

ces, witk 379
accoryrodaticn units currently in place, an
schemes in varous stages of deumlopmmt offefmr*

contemparary lving spa

over 500 additionat accommodaton unifs.

A friendly community 1s at the heart of our
refirament vilages, which is why in our
developmen:s we provice central fac:lities and a

bub of social activity for cur residents,

Lending

The lcans we made during the year have hielped to
fung the construction of student accommodation
and much reeced residential properties.

We contirue to extend lcans to 24 w@x drivers and
fleets 1o enable themn 1o use elecir'c vehiucles,

reducing carbon Brm.ssions in our capial.

Fibre

Through our filbre dwision we are burdirg out the
Fbre ophic
of our rmanagemeant feams are focussed on
broadband networks for

and a

brocadband network acress the UK. Sour

buildhing out fibre couc b
residertizl customers and small pusnesses,
fiftr 15 building a fbre networi (o deliver ertarprice

onnecitivity Our sixth s a software development

2

mpany operaing N the finre sector and

providing services to our grous companiss

Witk thas div sicn we have plans € create

nelwork providing connectivity 1o over ore I’TliHIOﬁ
properties in the next three years, many of which

dont currently

are in amall towns and villages that
niave access (o 1nernel comnectvity At for maodern

ways of worang and communicating

MNot only are our fibre bus nesses bringirg

cnnectvity 1o underserved communities, they are
also generaling ermployment cpoortunities for
young mdividuals via training acacemies and
apprenticesnip schermes, and are drving dwversity in
Telecos, with ore of our cormparnies baving
launchad 2 rurnber of intaives to

iNta the sector

recruit wemean

Home building
Qur homre building division utiiises a high
proporuon of sustamnable timgeer frame constructon
merhods and nzalls ar source neat p

is sector and

pumps n all
properties, leading the way in th

helping reduce carbon emissions.

Mo rita

*;*x:@;wmmz* i

i daima Tl D R hene sl
Biprbairiaii phoibe N‘Qif“”’
i
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Our strategy in focus

Oy businasses

Energy
ThroLgr our energy division, the Group owns ard
operates energy sites whch supply gas ana

ejectricity intc the network, a5 well as consiructing

energy sites “or future sale. ©F the 220

enasrgy Ses trat we own ara operate, 154 provide
reriewaole erergy, contnibuliog o the Group's
posticn a3 cne of e largest nroducers of
renewable criergy frorm commercial scar

n the UK Energy sites are tyoically expected 10
gerierate stable profitz for many years,
owrmg and operating 1
to the
aredictable profits over the lang term,

258 hUsINesses

Croup because of ther potential @

Renewable energy siies gengrae

sustainable sources and sell energy croduces either

power fro

directiy o arge inoustnal Consumers or 1o tre
network Mary of our enewable energy sites aiso
qualify ‘or govaernment ircentives, whick results i a
nortion of the gernerated erergy benehting from

soecified per od once
a gualifying site 1s operational and accreditation nas

5 has reduced <cme of the impact

rates fnat are ltocxed in’ for a

been granted Tos

of the volatiity 'n long-lerm energy price forecasts
v for

istoric grovaErTment neentives, we are seemg more

As new sites oult ir the UX do rot gquai*

TECrEst in the markel for sies like the ones we own

ard ocperate

s

Cwring and cperatrg energy sites s a core part of

our strategy and currently makes op alrost 0% of

the Group's net assels Tnis part of our Group has

Did you know?

gererated higher returns this year thar expectad

due to rmarket condiions but crucially it nas the
potentiay to prav de statsie relurns over tre lorg-
term, Ths corrtination s key 1o our ST'F‘egv o
D& ance risk ard return across thie rarge of Group

activities to

“Qur energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

Due to the migr-guality emeray sites we own, we

are able to gsecure long-ter™ irancny from

mainstrearn Danks at COTHDGUJVQ rates o enhance

our raturns, which helps us to aever the level of

BrUIms Our sharenciders exgect

Whie cur rerewable energy susiness started ufe in

the solar energy sector, the Groun has built

expertse acrost other adjzcen: techinclogics

riciuding cnshicre wind, biom ard landfill gas

SuUpDOTRd Dy reserve power plants which grovice
cackup power to (e hatonal Grid, The Group
thereiore berefits from diversiication w.thin this
zart of ite business, snce weaker condiuons fo
energy proddcuon frorm one echns
n stronger production elsewhers The Group also
ga.ﬂs sgrificant benef't from its scale ir ihis sector

5 OJr buimess is spread across over 220 sites,

ar

astly reducng tre risk W Group profabibity f ore

site suffars an coerational ¢

sruption

If laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.

gerierate iarget relllms for SE"'EW'EV’OLOQTS

gy ofien resui
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Qur strategy in focus

Iradcimor to our UK sites, the Group is developing
sites overseas, in jurisdictions thatl we understand
well Thece prasert an attractive Gpoortunity as they
bulld on cur zector expertise In CGuriines 4t an
zarlier stage of renewable deveiopment Currenily
we operate wind farms in Ireland and France and
and Australia We have several
der con

solar 5.tas 11 France
WING 5ites struct.on in Poland, France

and Austraiia

Doring the year we acquirea rmire reserve power
plans and ¢
construchor, we seld two wind farms in Finlard andg

cre energy frorm wasie siie Fodawng

shortly after the year eng we also sold Darlirgt
Poinz, a large solar site in Australia.

Healthcare

Tarougn our healthcare divis:on, the Group
operates in the private rmecical and retirement living
sectors Our retirement living business, Rangeford,
CWhNs ana operates two retirerent villages in
Wiltshire and Narth Yorkshire and is currently
developing three further sites for future operations

Cur private medical business, Ore Healthcare owrs
and cperates two private hospitals in Kert and
Hertfordshire, providing the very best level
in modern, well equipped hospital facilities

of care

Since retuming to normal working patterns we have
s patients paying
for ther own treatment as they face long waiting

een ar increase N the number of

[ sts for NS treatment Despte the lifting of
widespread restrictions across the JK, Covid-139
cortrues to z5ect the acute care sector with a
stressed NHS and increazed infect.en conircl
rmeasures that remeain in ptacrﬂ

Lending
Lending oo
and has proviced tne Group with a orofatabe ang
rover tne past twelve years
This weil-csta our Grodp mainty
consists of property lending, which orovices
fnancing to experienced professional

rd frds seeking

rtnJes to be a core part of our business

cash generative secio
lished part of

short-term
propérty deveosgears, buy-to-at la
pridzing inarce, and de\/clopfﬂemﬁ ancing,
which provides short and medium term financing
o compan-es

A key tenefir of the scale of cur Groug and of the
business that we nave built up N this sector s our
ability to mitgate risk through having a targe
nuriber of shiort and medium erm leans spread
acress small projects w ird vidual norrowers We
preactvely manago counterparty risks through
Lndertaking careful borrower due diligence, tak ng

“Lending continues to be a

important part of our

business and has provided
the Group with a profitable
and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

a first oh

aH’]H’]"‘ corservative LO&'"\-?Q-VEEUG ratics.

secur.ty over assets typically or
nd main
Not ail lears will perform as ax

arge SRR

QL

pacted and
measuras Felp to mrimise tne impact of
performancs issaes on an incividuzl loan. This s
further mitigated through the value that we end (o
navidual borrowers, relative 1o our total toan ook,
which 1s currerity spread on average across 182

ge

loars, with an average individuat loan of £2 Z2m

Fibre division
Cur fbre divison includes five operaticnal
companies buiding fibre net /orks inthe UK and

one software deve.opmeant company.

’!’hrough our residential F bre nusinessas, we are
Buileing new ghys:cal abre networss fo-
commun tes in tre LUK and <o far nave bull out
fibre infrasiructure in underservec parts of Devon,
Somerset, Dorset, Wiltshire, Hamosiure,

Waorcestarshre and the Home Count'es, We are

es
2 mng Lo pass over ane millon hornes cver ine

next three years.

Bulding thiese large networks involves cornecting
large datacenes and telephone exchanges in the
UK with bormes anc ousinesses, effecilively
replacing the copper wires that were laid in the first
nalf of e 20th century. Jurassic, Swigh and
Ciganet are verucally ntegratec, as they botn own
the fibre Infraztructure and z:20 have the end

custormer relat onship as the internat service

oroviger or "15=" Allpoints owns fibre irfrastruciure
and wil. onboard othar 1SFs 1o the Allgaints network

10 sell cornectivity to the ena custome-

Tharcugh Vorbos

X
Landon o sunply husness-to-busness (8287

enterprise connecivity direct 1o bus ness

customers Vorbess nas instzlled over 500km of
finre otic cakles in London since 2020 and has
recently launches a single 10Ghbps product to
marker, recagnis ng that ami ticus Lenaon

usinesses will quickly require maore than trie 1Gbps

connest vity they've relied on to date

N orapid crowth in our fore dision
snce 2018 and we expect thid divsion 1o continue
to become & larger part ©f sur basiness over urmne.
The Group expecis to spend agproxmately £lon of
capizal by 2025 to fuis its build plans and reach

More communties in need of ulirafast broadbard

Home building
Qur riew home oulding busiress, Etvie s a full

sery ce houwsenu der, acquinrg end, deveioping tre
site, and subsequently seling the homes o

c

mdividual buyers These siles include a mix ¢ open
~arket and affereabis houses and strive to deliver
righ gquality aspratonal homes. The business s
grow'ng fast with projected arnual turrover of
£250m and GOT Fouses bult per

w hin the next 2-32

year forecasted

YEEMS.




b
3%
|

2 | STRATEGIC REPORT

Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company’'s
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, energy sector-related and strategic skills.

Paul Latham - o w0 0

PaL! s Chie® Execuive of Fern ard is respors ble for the day-to-day rurning of the

business He s alsc a managing direcior of Ociopus invesiments Limitad (O,

whera ne has worked sirce 2005, Ol s a kay suppler of resource and expertise
cle ensures tnat thes relaticonshin works effectively and in the

to Fern Paul's dual r
bestinterass of Ferm's shareholders Paul has had var'ous gereral management
and internal consuiting roles across a number of seciors and brings with hirm

a wealh of industry and business exper ence

o Heith Willey o0 oo O

& Heith 15 an associate professor of strategy and entrepreneurship at London

Business School He also holds various ~on-executive directorshios and advisory

raies at high growth and more mature companies. In his role as non-executive

chairman he is respons:hle for the effective operaton of the Board, as well
as its governance He brings to the Fern business indegendent commerciat

experience gained from nis trme in academia, private equity nvestment,
consulting and various hands-on operational roles,

Peter Barlow o el w0 0 oo
Peter has over 30 years expernence ir irternational fnarcing of infrastracture and energy.
As a senicr executive for Intermat.onat Power, Peter was responsible for arranging over
512br of prosect and corporate furding, as well as banking relatonships ard treasury
activities He has spent over 20 years working ntermatorally for HSEC, Bank of
America and Normurg, finenc ng acquisitiors and greenfield proects in the energy
ard infrastructure seciors His combination of Board-level firarang and energy
experience over nurmercus energy suo-sectors, and his all-rourd knowledge of
all the sectors i which Ferr operates, adas significant value to tne operaion of
the Board as wel as its strategy farmation and depioyment

Tieyy Apthuy - - v s s

Tim is a chartered accouniart with more than 25 years’ internat'onal expenence

as a finance director of botn public and private companias. Inizally hie worked

for Price Waterhousze -n Birmingham and Chicago. More recently he was Chief
Financiagl Officer of L'ghtsource Renewabie Ernergy Lta, a glooal leader in the

funding, deveopment and long-termt operation of sciar photovoltaic projec

Tim bnngs extensive financial and accountancy =nowladge to the Board as
well as an understanding of dynamic technclogy businesses gained from his

executive positions.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks

Management identify, assess

assoc:ated with the Growp's business okiectives and
strategy. Risks anse from external sources, those
wrch are rherent comrmerc-at risks in the market,
and fromr operational nsks contamed within the
systems and processes employed within the

Business. Ove

the likethocd of the risk has
OF remaneac the same.

rail risk exposure 18 managed across

the Group tirough the diversifcaton of actvities,

both by secior and geography

Risk

B AR S § % REe 5 anh B § L RRaRe ad ae e b © L ahe ake o eea oo 27

Market risk:
The enargy secior 5 exper anaing
cigrificars urbulence and there s
a risk that forecast .evels of ircome
are not achieved due to dﬂmgps n
(iglelts ey G
CONracts or govern:
Due to this wrbuler
e poiental for ircreased
intervertion Ly the regulator iz also
& risi.

irGrmernt,

Changes ir Governmert policy
may result ir reduced inccrme
streams within the group due (o
audmonat te\f es

Operatlonal nsk
Leveis of energy produced may
be lower than antcpated due ic
sun-optmal weatrer conditors
or pesformance 1ssuas with
equipment, whch may result in
swgn Heant u"flar"r'ed dov

Financial risk:
Feven.es (from energy
generaton or izle crocesds
(fror the sae of stes) generated
frorm cwerseas sites are lower fran
excected due o fluctuatons in
foreigr exchangs rates

Construction risk:
Construchon of the sitas takes
lornger or 13 rore cottly than
anuc pated due to rescurce
avai:ablily o .noregsed cost of

ras m—fm\a |3

Mitigations
« Contracts are ertereg into which fix the noome fu 3
portion of the energy generated oy Gur sites.

+ Long-term governiment backed ciftake agreements are
In place, suck as the Renewable Obl gation Cert:hcaton

{"ROC" scheme 30% of our energy IMcome was
gererated from ROC revenue

« We ergage wita the governmenrt ana the Gihce of Gas and
Liectnony Marxets {{GFGEMT) 1o contr bute to an industry voice
with poicy maxers who set future regalatory requiremens.

+ Uncredic ather s mitgated trcugh
G‘ve'sfcatlum of techmqlogles and locauon of stes.
v Regul

o Wwe

are kept r good condgition anc mim se the sk trat
assels are unavalable for a longer penod

+« Managemert ensures onl,/ asmall porticn
assets and reverues are experiec o e cenved fror
53

xed proe contrac

servicing of assets 1s underiaker: o ersure assets

# Th conTactors

orawe toreduse excosure Woincreas ng <osts.

aclions we take to reduce the caotental impact

and Mmanage risks i The principal rsks (nat the Sroup are exposed o
are described Be:ow, alorg with the rritigating

the ris<. We also include our assessment of wheather

inCreased, decreased

Change

R

4

Increased

faue w marke

fa
DR

Mo cranges

g g
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Mltlgatlons Change
Market risk: « Mana !‘;eme"wt regularly reviews the \,\)mq“f tve landscaoe
Expecteo sales from Customers ir target build areas to ensure plans do not confhat witn
are lower than anticivated due other aiternaive nelwork ope-ators.
nicreased compettion from other = Management engages proactvely wh tne Office of
oroviders Cornmunicatons and e Government 1o ersure e %
N benefts of smailar operators are well urderstood and its creasec
Acrmarge npolcy by the iy > ORErEion: a Ll e Increased
) irferests are appropnately represented {due to mors
ff;gu:a:ofs n favour of larger compation in
N e « YWe are an actve participan:ir relevant rmdustry bod as, - CEe T
operators coLld impact our abdity the marke?)
cartcularly tiose represeniing a'ternative netw ,urk
1o cel ver plarred devecoment, i
. . cperatcrs
reducmg revenues and efficiercies
gained from aiarger presencein g
Construction ris « The Group has contracted with & rumber of differert
Construcron of the network sLppliers to recuce the exposure to any one ndradual %
takes longer or 1s more costly entity Selection of outsource partnerss s managed increasec idue
than anticipated due o rescurce torough a detailed procurerment orecess with leng term [ mcreis:’ng
; ; i semand for
avatiakility or increased cost of wisihi hty of work aliowing partners to plan financial and (rﬁgsoirrﬁce :;
ravy Manenas. pecple resources accordingly the sector as
« Wrere supcly chain prooiems are expectad for crnincat alternative
itermns our teams generaly nave b months stock of fore, Qrevwit-;ﬁ:?ﬁ;‘alﬂ
PR Aol
duct and other rmatenals on hand, and advance order ) il

techm” equ\prr‘f—r“t wWith Lﬁrnﬂ Fpad Hmes

Operationat risk: « Qur network are bultin a resillert way with diverse

Networ< service 1s Interrupted or raute ophions should a faldure cccur n one route. BT
urreliaiie lead ng to potential toss Tnis, cormbinad with an ability toidenufy ano resolve N mjw

of custamers and reputational connectivity issues quickly, minimises dowrtime of the Nao cnange
damace. ﬂﬂtNOH«u

prors iy
g%z*:*@*‘s 385 M
Lt g%m 4
melhian

aenhn
TELE
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Principal risks and uncertainties

B

Risk

Market risk: « Theeams pro-act veI/ rmanage our postion in the

Increasing in rla v ard interest markf.etptace and ars prepared to enforce wnere neeced If

rates lead to a rmar R Cce a ioan moves into defaul

affordablity issue, rezulting in « Qurioans are raage at corservative lcan-to-value (LTV] Fr]
Foa maximum LTV of 70%. e

drop in oroperty values across al\.
sectors of «2a estate. Tnis may
Impact our ability to recover a
lzar in full through a refinance

Mo change

ar sgle.
Counterparty risk: + Loans are securec against pr
Loars may be made to unsutable such as a cnarge cver the
counterparties, rmpactng our Borrower These are ynic
ar I‘\’ F D recoyer e ioan balance snsJre maximum charce
i full acticn be needed
o . 3 = Ircreased (due
» Thorough aue dilgence is parforrmed aror 16 writrg o unsiable
loans, mcluding property or tand valuzt ons and credit eCancmic
checks done on borrowers, climate]

« Where loans are wrirhm for assets under construcucn,
2 RU N PLECRE 10 ensure
stages are '“rrote*f orior o releas mg w*mer drawdaowrs

Risk Mitigations

Market r:sk (Healthcare and . wlan 1 NG Consents on undes /elopm lard are opt.

Home Building): raximise revendes ard reduce the risk of iosses or sale. %

A fall in noise prices could ,
. e Increased {dues

rmipact our alxlity te -jenerate tes Lnstable

expected revenue from the sale SCONOIMIC

of apartments irn our reffrement climate)

v llages ana houses built by Elwvia

Construction risk (Heaithcare « The Grodp erters Gxed pr ce CORracts whers 3porophate

and Home Building}: to reduce exposdre (o increasing material costs
Corstruction takes longes- or o The Group only works wih reputable 3rd parties with 2 P
iz mare costly than anticicated srong track record of gelivenng similar prosects. Mo crange

CJe D resource avaliabi
increzsed cost of raw materia s

Health and Safety risk e The Croup rmanta ns robust poecies a-d nrocedures

{Healthcare): relating 1o the grovision of medica, services We review this

The preventon of mijury or througr concucting reqguear irternal msoections, and are

avowsable wss of Ife of cur also Subjwt o exterrg: nsoechons Dy reguLats odies

patien:s is of utmost importance + The Croup has rsurance pol CIes In §.age o Cover

anc s or LCai o Mmainaining a finzrcial lozses ade o medicat matprachice claims No change

zood rmpura‘m” —higatior as
aresuit of medical maipract'ce
could result in damage ©

reputation
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk Change

Market risk: « Where floating rate cebt 5 in place where mnterest vanes
In e with an urderlying bercnmark ratel, the Group -%
enters inte h=dging arrangements to fix a poruon of these e enced
payrments throughodt the term of the fac ity Hedgirg {due to rise i

service dett 2s 1t “aills due. arrargerrents are odtines in Note 21 of the financial irterest rates)
statements.

Liquidity risk: « Adetaied cast flow forecast is prepared and revievwsd

Poor management of cask within by managemen:i on a morthly Dasis, incarporating cash

thie Group could imipact ine avallabilily and cash requirements across the Group On at

Group's akinty o meet otbiligations east a guarterly bas s this is shared wth the Board.

as they fa'l due + The Group maonitors bank covenants on ar engoing Basis B

to ensure continued acherence 10 covenarts, Where

covenarts can't be rret, forecasts are updared for tne
wwer cash avallanle as a result of the restncticn.

« Thie Group has a fiexible finarce facility which can be
drawnr: on at short rotice 1o meet immediate business

No change

needs
Health and Safety risk: + We have developea robust iealth and safety pobcies in
Trie safety of aur emoloyees compliance with 15045001 across the Group to ensure
ard those emoioy=d through the wel-being of cur staff
contracts are of pararmount + Healtn and safety tranirg s grovded to our staff and
‘mgortance There s a nisk that COontractors on a requiar Dasis ncreased
accidents ir the wor<place could
result in senous rpury o deatn,
Cyber Security risk: « We employ a Chief information Securty Cficer MCI507)
Arattack on our 1T gystarms and wha 15 responsible for data security across the Group and
data could tead to disruption reports quarterly to the Board. S
of cur ogerations and loss of + The CISC works closely with our businesses to ersure ]
cusiomer data Less or misuse adegquate standards of secunty and nformaticn No change
of cata may result in reputahicnal management are ragt

a
damace reguiatory action under » Fack of cur nusinesses that hold cusiomer data has their
GDPR and potenital fines. own dedicaed rescurce for [T arg security

The strategic report was zoproved by the Board of Directors on 16 December 2022 and signed on s bahal® by.

PS Latham
Director
6 Decemioer 2022
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Corporate governance

Section 472 {1 statement

The Board consider that they have adhered to the
requwremer‘.tz of saction 172 of the Companies Act
2006 {the "Act™), and
way trat wol

= N gocd ‘aith, acted in a

ld be most hkely to promote the
sucaoess of the Grouo for the beneft of its mempers
as a whoie (nav.ng regard to all stakeholders and

section 172(1a-f) of the Ac
N thie decisicns taken durnirg the year ended
20 June 2022.

matters sat out i

In the performarce of its duty o promote the
cuccess of the Grou

p. the Board has reqard to 2
number of rratiers, Inc.udi~g tne likely

caonsequence of ary decisiors: 1 the long e, anc

Isters to the views of the Group's key siekerolders
to buid trust and ensure it fully understanas the
poertial impacts of the decisions it makes. Tre
Board fuihls these duties partly Ly delegaion o
commitiees and tne boards of subsdary
undertakings, who operate within a corporae
governance frarmawork acrass the Group.

At every Board meeling a review of health ard

safety across the grouo, financ al anc cperanonat
perfarrmance, as well as legal and regulatory
ormpiance, s undertaken. The Board also review
other areas over ine course of the financa: ysar
nclud.ng the Group's business strategy, key risks,
stakehoider-relaiec matters, diversity anc inclusivity,
ervironmenial matiers, Corgorate responsiciity, and

governance, cormpaance and legal mat ers.

Principal decisions

We define principat decisions taken by the Board as
those decs ons that are of 2 sirategic rarure and
trat are aign-feant to any of our key stakenolder
groups The Soarc coms der that tre o lowing are
exampes of principal cec.ae s it made in e year

ended 30 Jure 2027
« By
nCreasing wind operaions, wn o s part of

our renewagies dwisiorn in August 2021 the

Qb

luatrg ang deciding o rrove ahead w i

Crous acquras & \argﬁ scale, ready to construct
CTrus depaoym.,nt align=

with the Groug's strategy te cont nue w

wind site -n Austr

develop renewaile energy sies wnmk orovide
predictabie. long-term revenue streams. The
Acard consizered the opportunity and how i

ligned vatn cur objecuves to make a gostive

Q

Iy

ontributon 1o the community and envirornmenit

Tre Group decided (o oxpand imto cur newest
divisior, rouse bulding In May 2047 the Group
ac:q.;:ired Elvia nomes, a fuil-service preperty
developer prov éng services from tne design,
10 the engineenng and thes final consruction
o ensure tre detvery of guality workmarshie
Dversfying the Group's asset base and entenng
nto thic new sector has beer well thought
cutwith tong term growtt in mind. Tne Seard
aszessed the strategic opporiunit es within the

w

ector before decid ng to move aheas wah this
acguisition, considering how this wou.d 'mpact
existing businesses within the division and how

t aligred with e Group's strategrc objecuves
deliver long lerm value ana predictable growt
for our sharcholcers.

~eviewind and deciding o micve abead with

ncreas ng bioMmass operations which s part of
our renawables division In October 2021 e
Croup achured a large scale, waste-to-energy
construction ste ir Scotlane Th s depioyment
aiigns witn the Group's strate_cy o continue to
diversify the Group. cevaioo re~ewable erergy
sites wh'z= provice predictable, .ong-term
reveriue sresms, and orovde resii ence agarst
wrolesae oric ng crarges i the U< energy
cooribrity

re 2oarg corsdered tne o

ard emvirsorrent
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+ Thne board decided ¢ change audit firrms via a
for the year ended 30 June 2022
Trie Group nad changed sigrif cantly since tre
previous audizors were aprointed and therefore

tender process

we were unable to reliably assess the value fo
money we received. Thres firms urderwent
the tender process a~d Ermst & Young ULP were
selected because Cf tneir strong cormmercial
urdersiandirg of our business, eff.cient audit
methodology and value for morey

Business strategy

Qur business strategy s set o
tme Stratecic Report, Managemen
detaled Group budget which

Board on an arnual baz s ard forms the nasis for

ut or gages 11 1o 14 of
D(Cpar’p:(‘
s approved by the

tne Group's resource plarning and deployment
gecisons In making decisions concerring the
business plan, the Board has regard first and
foremost ¢ its strategic facus, but als
matters such as the interests of its various

¢ other

stakeholders and the long-terT imgact of its
actiors o~ the Group's future and reputaton

Sharehoiders

Shareholder relations and generating shareholder
vaie s & key cons:ideration when the Board s
mak.rg strateqic decisions The prirme medium by
which the Group communicates with shareholders
i= thrcugh the anrual report and financ al

crovide shareholders with
a full understanaing of the Groug's activities and its
This —rwformat%om is publisheo o our website
at www.ferntrading.com.

staternents, whicr aim to

results

Employees

The Group's emp.oyees are furcamental to the
overal success of the pusiness. The Directors fulfil
treir duty to empoloyees by entrusting oversight tc

ubsiciary Boards which the Chief Executive of the
Group also sts on.

The drectors of the subsidiary undertakings
marage the day (o day cedision maxing,

engager~ent and commurications with amployee

and ensure that people are treated Tarly and are
valued with respect to pay, penefit and condit-ons,
We fully realise that our employees wsh 1o be

informed and consulted on matters affecung their
wor< and Lo be involved in problern-solving

afiect
resoonsitil iy, The Group is
pal cy of good communication at

ng their own areas of interast and

firmly committed to a
all levels and we
aim to establish a clirmate which constanfly
encolrages the open flow of iInformator and

ideas Presertly this nciudes monthly team brignas
at z lozal ieve. and the publicatior of monthly key
performarce indicaiors coverng suiplt, ooerating

costs, and heaith and safety,

The heach and safely of cur employees in tng

waorkplace 1s a continual focus for the Group, given
its broad operatioral busiress. The Directors review
Hea'th & Safety Reportmg at each board meeting @
ensure appropnate policies and procedures are in
place to protect the heattn and <a." ty of our
employees and corniraciors. Where there are
poleniial defciencies ar issues, these are followed
up and resalved or a tmeiy bazis, with the Board

having cversig™t cf the act-cns aken

The Group outscurces actwties and management

of certa activ ties to external sLppliers

Where activities are

in operational
outsourced t~e Goard ensures
trat they are managed oy repufable supplers who
meet all the relevant inaustry and reculatory
cornmitments as well as treating employees fair,
Expected standards are documerted in all service
contracts and adherence 1o these ave continually
througn their service

agreement with Octeous Investrments Lirnited

monitored py Board

Suppliers and castomers

Tre Greup acts i a fair manner with all suppliers
and customers and sesks to mantain strong
pusiness relationsnips with thern This 1S achieved
by all coritracts beirg negotiatea through a far and
transparent tender process which includes
assessing the mpact or the leng-term obiectves of

AT e
ISEG o
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Corporate governance

the Group. We review our gaymert processing

times against contracts every six months o ensure
supplers informaton for

are: paid promptly and this

the company is avalable on the www.gov.uk

website

s fairly and in & tramsparen:

manrer to al cusiemers acrass all divisiors and
services, and acively engages o resclve any disputes
or defauits "ne Boar«d ciosely menitors customer

ronetrics and ergages with the management tearm (o

understand the ssues if business performance does

not meet customeéers’ expectations.

—

The Board considers Ociopus investments Lim:teg
and suppl.er with

ity for the provwsworl of operational

i Trrenistration and oo

te be a key busness partner

rEsponsi
overs

ght, Ainancial ormpany

secretanal sewices.
Community and environment

The proviston and operation of sus
nfrastructure is at the centre of the Group's

tarracle

ies the

ke

strategic goals. Tarougn ©s Dusiness activit

Group seeks to make a pos tve Contnpution to
community, ervironmen: and econony Our
iping the UK Tmeet
, our private hasgitals
Fave SJD’“TJF;E(’J the NHS througrou the Covid-19
oy providing treatrmen: for non-Covid-19
NHS patients tat otherwise coule not Fave been

renawathe enaergy Dusiness is

its renewable energy targefs

pandemic b

carr ed out, and Cu etwark will aive pecple

iN rura. CoOmmMLnties ace

broadband

S5t ighi-speed

Business conduct
As Directors curirtention 5 t0 behave responstly,
£N5UrngG Manrzgement Sperate ine Husness wiin

Medrity ard in accoraance wth the hign standards

of conduct and gcvernar'lce expect

SUCT as ours, Ourirtes

193]

traiegy outlined o1 pages 11 ot

Sectors and workowith oer Lus!
Cur vailes

Business ethics and governance

The Board s responsible for ersuqng that the
activities of the >Jsinesses are
conducted in zompliance w th the law and
applicable governance and regulatory reqimes, an
I ach
relava-t na

Zroup and its vanous

rence with prevaillng best practce for tne
stry This includes reviewing internat
conols, ensuring that there 's an apoproprate
ba.ance «

of skills £ represen
Boara

cand ersuorg that the inancial sta
give a frue and farr view of the state ¢ affa

and experienc ed ontne
tements
irs o the
C—roup Further detal car be foung in the statement
of direc
to 30 Ju
flagged in thig reqardy.

ors respons-hilitie
e 2022 no areas of concern aave ogen

s on page 29 In the year

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters
The Bozrd's polcy on emplovee, human rights,
sOCiEl anc comimunity 1ssues, environTent polcy

N anti-corruption and brbery ratters is aiscussed
in the Directors’ Repart on page 29. The Board

v2ly promoies a coroorate culture that is oasze

Q]

on ermical values and behav ours.
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Feview of Hnancial statements

e purpose of this report is o provide additional
expianatory inrforration on the firancial staternents
e finarcial

In measuring cur performance, th

that we uze incluae thosa that have been

measuras
derived from our reported results noorder 6
glirminate factors that distort year-on-year

cormearisons. These are corsidered non-GAAP

financial measures,

A reconciliation of these o the finarcial resuts can
be found in note 28 of the notes to ine finanaial

satementis

The finarcial statements show assats at cost, as such

they de not ref ect the future value thal we expect to
To that extent

derive from thase pusinessas

1e share pr:ice ard may rot ref.ect cnanges n e
the sh d may rot ref.ect cnanges n tne

full marker value of assets
the Group.

OF DUSINEsses cwned by

A ramber of acquisiticns were rmade during the

yvear, Including nine operationa: reserve power sites,

a waste o energy site under corstruction, a

corstruction ready wnd farm o Australia ana
seventeen solar rocftop sites under construction
Shortly after the year end, in July 2022, w

Daringon Point, & large solar site in Australia,

o support continuad exgansion, we had Guilt up

casn resarves at _/‘Laf nd of E256m which included

a large cash rfiow of £EG/m from placing external

-

refirancing in Oarlington Pont pror to sale

accodntng performance rmay differ matenaly from
(restated) Movement

2022 2021

£'000 £'000 £'000 %
;QG‘JEHIJG 711,830 425,302 256,528 &7
ggoa 194916 10403 oram e
Proft floss) before tax  aze0s (22, 663) 70,267 390%

Dmd ng br“m n—(—z‘ o{rprg;;vr\éwon; 7 7 360,901 - 385 512 (24 Fll‘ o fEJ"/o)

Cash 256,415 172,478 835927 49%
Net dpb e s e e+ e e e 793 159 . 599440 ST Q3 72q 13 .
Netassete 2219448 1,887,842 331607 18%

Financial performance

Overall, the Group nas reperted &
E47 &m for the year ended 30 June 2
£70 3m \mproverﬂc Nt on the pr cr ye

E22 7 loss restated) Overall EBITDA incre
87% 10 £195m {2021 £104m restared),
primarity due to increased energy generaticon as well
d erergy prices.

sed by £287m o £712m (2021

proft kefore tax of
2022, whch sa

ar (2021

ased by

WwhICH 15

as increase

Revenue increa

‘Earrings hetore interest, tax, depreciaton and amaortisslor

E425m) whichk was predomimantly driven by a 84%
ImCreass in reveriue winm our energy division This
growth is twe fold,
frome having owned/cpera
wlants
Australia reaching commissioning; and a
NCrease in average energy prices over the year due
ter the mismatch between supply and demand,

exacerbaed by the ongoing confictin Ukraine.

ncreased energy generat.en
ted one of our biornass
for the full year and a large solar plant in
signifiicant




31 GOVERNANCE

Group finance review

Reveriue growth was strorngest in oJur energy
drasion but we aiso saw 2 miarked improverment 1IN
his part of
our business nas rebounded wel. from the
lockdowrs required by the Cov.d-19 candemric

ng 41 units n the year {an increaze of

revenue from our retirement villages. ™

esponse, selli
S2%) and an increasing ir reveniue of £7.5m to
£204m (2021 £12.7m),

Revenue from our lending divis.or saw a drog of
25% w0 L4 (2021 E57rm) due to a smaller average
loan book over the year as cash was made availakle

to grow cirer parts of the business.
Cperating
our expectations, wibh: tre increase primar

expenses for me yaar were n line witr

¥ Criven
by increased ore division as
it has expanded Refqrancing exiermal debt o

sacure improved terms ovar the past two

operating cosms in our ft
years has
comtbutes to & decrease nantersst costs of £2.5m

0 £33 6m {2021 £35 1m).
Included in the results this
recognised on the sale o two wind farms in “inland
21 &rm of deferred cor
on sclar sites solg In pravious years

yeer iz a profiv of £28m

and a realisation of sigeration

Financial position

Continued shareholger interes: and inves t na
ez grow to £2.219m (2021 £1 Q8 m
estated;. In tne year ended 30 Jung 2022, we
ssued 120m shares (2021, 150m; for a fota

cons deration of £204m (2021 £2.317/m). Tre
comparauve year numbers include £1.992Zm of

seen rnet a5s

o~

{

5

caris deration relating o growp restruciunng

rd cash eguivalents as at 30 Jure 2022 were

a
£256m (2021 £172m). Casnh generared from

OpSTatngG acth
24
3

£342mr) whicn ~as been ubt sgd almngside external
lorg-terr financ ng ana capital ra sec oy new snave
iS3UES WO grow e Dusiness We nave irvestas
substantially int the Fire broado SECtOr Qver

the past four years which wit
expenditure over the nex: 3—5 YEAETS, 'Hcreasmg our

ACation across sectors.

Of the casn nele at year end, £221m was neld in

v, home budding and fitre subsid\ar:es,
wiere there are 2 number of construction and
mfrastruciurea pr
be readily ava latle for stage paymerts due ir tre
rortng afrer year end.

cur enarg

rojects uncer way, reaguining cash o

(2021 £367m restaed),
cortinues ¢ ne g signific er g the
es on the acguison of some

Gooowii, at £542m
art numb
baance sheer and arises
nusinesses. Acgured businesses, for example
renewable enargy sites, ofien have a markef vaue
in excess of tne carrpany’s net assats, reflecting
the r reliable future ircome strea™iz. Accouning
convention requres that oniy identifiable assets are
ramec o1 the baance sheet s¢ the sccounts
carnot record the zalance of the addivcnal market
value whicr comprises the future profits nas sites
are expected to deliver The additional value ir
excess of tne valle of fixed azsels (remselves (cLor

as sclar panels) s recogrised as goadwiil.

_h
c_
=
D
@
=
(&)
a
FD
o

merket value for e sites we acqu\'r@, wihich may
as

exceed the valug of i[dentqanle efts sucm astre
solar panels ana <o generaes gcodw.t vich
essertally recrese he vawue of tne expecied

future income strears Goodwll recogrised

gracua 'y be wter off, typ caly over the life o

@
site, as exgpected returrs are reg’ sed
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Sactor performsnce

Energy
As ecoromic activity and global demand increased

targdghout the year, so e did wholesale energy :
prices, driven by movements in commodity prces,

which resutted in the overall incraase nrevenue
earned across oJr energy sites, 1rese market
AN INCTEJSE N rEVETIIe Of

£322m)

factors nave rasLlted
84% to £58Zm (2021

Correspanaingly, ERITDA also increased by 112% w0
£266m (2021 E126m restateq) reflecing the
signifcant increase n erergy reverus Overall totat

operating costs increased by £130m: 1o £327m

(2021, £196m restated), partally driven by increased
site costs whers £120m was incurred at our
biomass sites and £93m at owr reserve power sites,
1 on

tre prices for raw materials nave incre
average, by 69% due 10 an increase 1N the suoply
costs The combinec cost of sales for the raserve
powwer and bicmass gites increasad by £110m to
£217m (12021 107m; 1t should be noed that the
revenue generated by the biomass and reserve
powers sites ircreased by £192m duning the year o
3537 (2021 £161my

FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FYzo021

Production Production External External

(MWh) (MWh) Availability Availability

| andfii Gas 240,226 97.9% 97 6%

Reszerve Poveer 403,355 94.2% 092 0%

Sotar 554,858 97.7% 96 0%

Wind 851.214 90.5%

Total 3,099,690 ) S
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Healthcare

Healthcare operations contributed £46m
(2021 £42mi to Group revenuss far e year
refiecirs the mpact of noreasea raverus In

Ranges-d. Sa'es of apartrnents at the retiremrert
viliages nave ebounded well from the iockdowns
required oy the Covid 29 pardemic responrse,
seiling 41 units in the year (ar increase of 52% from
2021 and ircreasing revenue oy £E7.6m to £20 2m
{2021 £12 7},

Lending
Revenue from tendirg decreased oy L24m to 242m
(2021 £57m primariy due to a smallar average

loan book for 2022, which resulted in 2 decreaseq

The total loan book
reduced Oy 6% to £361m at the year ena (2021
£386m). Tris reduction mn the

revenue strearn for the year

lean book enabhes

cash w e available for opportun.tes across omer

=]
sectors within the Group including acguisitons and
construction The make-up of the loan bcok has
shiftea sl ghtly where we have 1ssued a h grer
numper of smgler .cans witmin the esidentzl
sector, as well as more Iarcer [oans ir tne

deveicpoment sector a~d the cornmercial secior

EBITDA for the lending division cecreased 10 a '0ss
of £8 /m fromr 3
year This movernent reflects

profit of nearly £2m in the pnor

a provision of £25m in
the ioan Loc< against loans to reserve power sites
and a orovisier agairst 4 hag

2022, £3°

itcare loan of £14m.

Ir the year o June 9 was provided

aganst loans versus £21m in the

pricr year

customers to their networks. 3y 30 June
r had buid passea over 18C,00

antic pawe the pullc s:a3gs o cont rue for & “urther
3-5 years gs we expand tne “ore metworks
Altnougn buiding a fbre retwork s cap tal 1mtensve

and 'eads (C a onysical asset on nalance shieer the

alse incurs arge operaling expenses as ih
cusinessas scale ther oteranons and develop
miarket presence Overal the
EBITDA (oss of £55 4m {202
5 N lne witn expeciali
develcprmental stage of

division

dwision reported an

£27 5rr loss), whicn
ons ang reflects the

the dyvsion

As we build these ~etworks out, the
recogn:sed or the balarce sheet at co
cannct include future value which is expecred o be
generated as the assets Nave been internali
gerneratec ThIS = differant 1o the zhare price where
the future vaiue expected to be garerated from the

assens is included,

Home building

Fiivia homes was acauires in May 25022 and has
therefore had lirmited impac: on the financal
performarce during the year Tne Gusiness s
forecast to desver E78rm reverue and £ 5m
EBITDA for the ya rended 30 June 2023, Recults
from the first cuarter of 2023 irdicate 1ne bhusiness
I

15 proacly performing in bne with exgectaticns

Funding and liquidity
egy Is o secure ong-term finarcing at
conservalve levels from mairstream b

Our stra

bariks 2

ent
businesses Al ye

nee returns from our renewakble energy
ar end we nad £1.044m of
external project anancing wiih £44lm of

neadrcom avalable.

iz enaties us o acquire businesses that tre

rriavker coniigers o have stable craracteristics sLerm
a5 predicigole cost base, revenue straams

goverrment incentves or grover IECh’:OEOgv and as
SUF?“ Have

suficient for aur sharenolders. It also 3

[Swer 2turms Trat wthout e g would

Sty 1T Anarong our Dusinesses a

nd
flow We nelieve that faling o agoot this

ey woLid have a negative mrpact on Lus ness
and shargngider value over the ong term
Approximately 80% of our irterast pavabie s fixed

and therefore we are rot significantly exgosed to
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the currert interest rate velatiity, We cortinualiy
review fnancing arrangements (o ensure that they
are cermipetitve and optmised “Gr tne needs of the
business. To ensare cash s managad in an agile
facilty
which can be drawn dowr: or repaid to meet

maniner, we mamtain a flexiole firarce

immegiate ousiness nesds

Locoking ahead
The Group has rebounded well from the effects of

the Cov.d-19 pandemic anag has outperformed
expectations. Whilst the currert ecorom.c ocutlook
is one of challenge and urcertainty, we ant cipale
rmim ral impact on our resdlls due to the
predictable revenue streams and cost base, and
essential nature of our acuvites. Cousled with the
diversification we nave built up across the busir ess
we are posiionad sir

nmes ahead.

ongly for these turbulent

We conrt nue to pay particular attenuon to the twin
challernges cof raing interest rates and surging
inflat-on ~ both i terms of lend ng anad portfclio
management These trends impact all areas of the
Group's business and are lkely to remain for the
foreseeable future, <o
investrnent approach, continuirg o monitor the

we rema-n discipdned in our

situation carefully and taking a prudent approach to
any currenit and emerging nsks

We are posit ve about the conunued opportunity
for growth and contnue t© believe that the
business is positioned well (o take advantage of
future growth opportunities across 118 core business
areas. Energy. lending and ~ouse bulding
operationg are wel. established in the market and
cortinue to make excelient progress with robus:
performarces in the new financial year i ne with
our plarned strategy, $'nce the year ernd we sold a
large sciar farm in Australia for a2 smatl oroft, witn
proceeas heing redeployed into new cpportunities

Ceployment into fbre continues o roll out i ling
with expectations and tne Group has now passed
rnore than 150,000 harmes by our Abre networks
Sales activity In our heasthcare division remains
ong. with nearly 40% of annual sales budget
e)d/ completed or reserved across all sites 45 at
e end of Septerber

Announced witkin the aJturmnr statement as part of
tre 2023 Finance 3l the UK Government wall
enact a 45% windfall levy {'Electrayy Generator
Levy  or "
rEVENes Ir exces

“G ) on wholesa.e energy market

s of £75/MWh. Tnis s expected t
apply to tre Group from 1 January 2023 1o 31
March 2028 Tne exact legislation will be publshed
in rnid-Decermber 2622, but basad on the nital

O

relezse an impact analysis has been perfermed
as at 30 September 2022 We estimaie the mpac
to be a drop ir valuaton of apo roxmateay £45m
for the sites af ected, which contributed (o a
the share price to 177 0p 10

We expect to gererate stror:g operating retums
from our established div sons for the corning years
in adoiion to the aﬂticnpateu outflaws for our
corstraction phase assets The healthcare and
fibre divisions are weil into their build prase in line
with our long-term strategy and we anticipate
strorg returns over the next five [o seven years
upon maiurnty.

PS Latham
Cirector
1€ Decerniper 2022

g iy
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Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022

For a summary cf tre Group's results, refer o the

Group firance reviow on page 2.3

Tre directors have not recomimendsad payrment of
a div dend (z021: EMNil}

The directors of the Compary who were m cffce
durng the year and wp o the date of signing tha

firarcal staterents were

FS Latharm
KJ Wiliey
FG Barlow

T Arthur (appointed 1 Joly 20221

PN O T TR
- A NERNENIN

Refer to note 2310 the Nates 1o the Frnandia:

statement
Refer to the Strateg.c Report on page 8

Refer to the Strategic Report onpage 12

Refer to the secticn 172 statermer: on page 21

<
i

The Group's chyectves and poicies on financial nsk
maucn or the

mznagement Incluging «nfor

inc
exposure of e Group 1o creait nisks, tguidity rnsks

and market risks are set out it note 21 1o e

f'J
D

financizl statements The Group's grincipal risks are

et out N the strategic report o~ page 15

Az perrmitied by section £14c G4 of the Compan.es
Act 2006, the directars have elected to dsclose
nformaton requres o be in the directors report
ny Schegule 7 of the 'Large and Medium-sized

Corrpanies and Grodps {Accounts anc Reports)

Requlat onis 2008 in the strateqic repor:
Trne Board recognises that a corporate culiure

nases on sound etreca values and berav ours 58

acset. The Group endeavolurs 1o concuct ifs

cusiness with integrity, i an ethizal, profess cnal
and responsible manner, trealing our 2mMployess,
ustormers, supplers ard partners with courtesy

and respect

Anplicaticns for emoloyment by dissiled perions
re gven full ard fair consideration fo

VACanc es, havirg regar

and anittes. Shoud a

wrie ntre Group's employert, every efor s

made toretan trem n emoloyment, gQiving

al*arnztve tra N ng at necessary
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We fuly realise that ouwr employees wish to be
informed and consuited on matters affecting their
work and to be involved in protiern-solving effecting

their own areas o interest and responsibiliy.

The Group is firmiy cormmitied to a policy of gocd
communication at all levels and we a'm (o estanlish
a climate which constantly encourages the open
flow of Information ard ideas. Presently trig
mcludzs monmly team briefings at a local level and
the pubreatior of rnonthly Key p@rformance
indicators covering output, ogerating costs and
Fealth and safety.

Tre Group has in plece an agreement with Ociopus
Investments Limited 1o provide services to the

Group coverng operatonal oversight,
adminsstrat ar, company secretarial and company

aTcountng

I S L e

Tre Board adopied a formal environrmental, sociai
and corporate governance ('ESC policy on

30 Septemiber 2020, The CGroup recognizes the
need (o conduct 1s bdsiness, ir @ rmanner tnat s

respansible to the environment, wherever possiple.

As a ow energy user tne Co
to disclose data on s energy arnd carbon usage
Fern Trading Limited 15 the only Company in the
Group that meets the reporting critena and

mgany ras elected not

tnerefore no irformatior is provided for the Group
as a wnote

Cem e
[P .

Tre Group's has an Anti-Bribery Policy wnich
introduced robust procedures to ensure full
compliance
that the highest standards of professional etrical
conduct are maintained

with tne Bnbery ACt 2010 and 1o ensure

I accordance with the recorrmendations of The UK
Corpora%e Governance Cade, the Board has
cnsicered the arrangsments in plia

tne Group to rase

ceto encourage
staff of the Groun or manager of
concerns, Ir canfidence, withi the'r crganisation
about possibie iImproprieties in matters of fiiarcial
rcporting or otagr rnatters. Itis satisfied that adeguate
arrangemenrts are 1IN place to allow an independent
investigation, and folow-on action where necessary,

to take place within the organisation

We are commitied to acting ethically and with
integrity in all our business dealirgs ardc
relgtionships and to rmpiemening ard enforcing
effective systemns and controis o ensare moders
slavery is not taking place anywhere in our own
business or in any of our supply chans, consistent
with our obligations under the Mogern Slavery Act
2015 We expect the same high stardards from all
of our contractors, supoliers ang other busness
partrers As part of Our contracting processes. we
expect our supplers to comply with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015

The d.rectors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Repart and the financ-al statements i
accordance with applicable law and regulauon

Cormoany law reqguires tne directors 1o grepare
financial staternents for each financia. year Under
that law tne directors have prepared the Group and
Company financia, statermerts i= accordarace with
Urited Kingdom Generally Acceptze Accounting
Fractice {(United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
compnsmg FRS 2102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicabe in the UK and Republic of
lretand”. and arzphcab
the directors must not approve the financial

le law) Under company law

statements unless they are szlshed that they give a
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true end fair view of the state of 5
and Company and of the profit or loss
and Company for that period. In preparing t-

finarcal staterrents, tne drecters are reguired

O (D
—
QO

« seelect suitabie accounting policies and then agply
them cons.stently;

» ctate whether applicable United Kingdom

Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, have
neen followed, subject to any material deoartures
aisclosed and expiained in the financial
statements:

» make Judf‘emeﬂts ard accouriting estmates that

are reasonable ana prudent; and

o presars trie financia statements o~ the going

corcern basis unless itis Inaspropriae &

oresume that tne Group and Comipany will
cortinue 1N business

The directors are also responsble for sa®eguarding
the assers of tne Group and Company and hence
g reasonable <‘@pf fort ne prevenuon and

responsble for keeping adeauate
accoLnting records that are sufficient to show and
explain e Group and Company's tranzacucrs and
disclose with reazonable accuracy at any ume the
finarcal position of the Group and Cormoany and
enable them o ersure that the financial statements

comply with the Companies Act 2006

The directors ame responst.e for the manwenance

and integrity of the C )mparys website Legstanen

T governng the preparaton

ano dissemiﬂaﬁ:cﬂ ﬁnaﬁc ai staternents may differ

fromn leg slation in otrer juisa ctions.

J

ded 30 June 2022

PR

PAs permitiea by tne Articles of Assocaror, the
I arrectors nave the bereft of an indernty which 12
Doz aualfying thrd-party indeminity prov.sion as

cefred by secuon 242 of tne Comuanes Act 2006
Tre indernrity was in force throughout the la
financial year anc 15 currerty inforce

ST ey e - P

In the case of each director in office at the cate the

Directors Reportis approved.

= s far as the drecter s aware, There 15 no relevant
audit mformation of whch the Group and
Coripany's auditors are unavrare, and

« Lney ~ave ta<en ail the steps that tney cught
to nave taken as a director in order 1o make
themsawves aware of any re'evant audit

inforrration and to estabish tnat the Graup ard
Cormnpany's auditors are aware of that nformation

This confirmat on s g'ven and shouid be nterpreted

n accordance with tne prowvis.ons of sect or 418 of
tre fﬂ’ﬂ’ﬁucﬂ“ s Azt 2006

Ermst & Young LLP hawing baer appcirted n 2022,
nave ~dicated rer wilirgness to be reapoontec
for another term and wil. be propcsed for re-
cointment in accordance with section 485 of the
s ACT 20056

roved by the Board of
022 and s.gned an its

_‘
"D
O
=
D
(‘)
O
=
[0
—
iD
=
<
i
oYl
o
Q)
ro 0
L)

PS Latham

: Diracteor

i 28 Decemper 2022
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinion
We have audited the fnancial statements o Fern i We believe that the audit evidence we have
Tracing Lirrited (the 2arent Compary’) and its I ogbtaireq is sufficient ana aporopnae o provide a

£

subsiciaries (the "Group’ for the year ended 30 Casis for Sur opirien
June 2022 which comprse the Group Statemert of
Comrprenensive 'ncome, the Grouo and Parent : Conclusions relating to going concam
Corrpany Balance Sheet, the Group Statement of ! 5 audifing the financial statements, we riave

Cazh Fiows, the Group and Parent Statemert of concluced that the drectors’ use of the going
Changes in Equty and the related notes 1w 29, concern nasis of accountmg in the greparation of

ncluding a summary of significant accourting the financial staterne is appropriate

polcies. The firanciai reporting frarnework that has @ ‘ ‘ 3 )
) T . i Based on the work we have perfcormed, we have
been appled i ther preparation 1s apptcable law
ard Lnited <ingdom Accounting Standards
ircluding FRS 102 "The ~inancial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Repubiic of
lretanc” United ¥ngdom Generally Accepie
Accodnting Practice)

not ident 9ec any material uncerfainties relatng to

events or cond tons that, individusily or colectvely,
v cast sigrifica~t doubt on the Groug and Farent

Corr*o any's ab:lty to contirue as a going concern

a perod of twelve rmrontrs frorm wnen the

firancial statements are authorised for 1gsue,

In Qur opiniorn, the Snancial statements: . -
Cur responsibilings and the responsibilities of
« cive a true ard fair view of the Group's and of the the direciors with respect to going concern
Parent Compary's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and ara described In the relevant sectiors of this
of the Group's profit for the year then ended; report. However, becaluse not all fulLre events or

- < ri be pradicied, this sta n Mt &
+ have been properly orepareo in accordance with ~onditions can be predicted, tris statement is fiot &

CUaTS - e N o ﬂi o ooe o
Urited Kinadom Generally Acceptes Accounting guarantee as to the Groun's eb:lity o continue as a
-1
o

Practce anc oIrng concarn

= have be pmpamd ir accordance with the Other information

.
requrernents of e Companies Act 2006 The other information comprises the informat.cn

. - included i~ the anrual report, other than the
Basls for opinlon ‘ . o L N
fAinancial statements and our auditor's report
We conducted our audit in accordance witn
internationa: Standards onr Auditing {JK} (ISAs (UKH
and spolicable law. Our responsitilities under those

standards are further described ir the Auditor’s

thereon. The drrectors are respansible for the other

information conta:ned within tne annual report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, except 1o the

resoonsitilities for the audit of the Anancial
staternents section of our report. We are :

extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we
do not exoress any form of assurance concluzion
thereon

independent cf the Group n accordance with the :
ethical requirements that are relevart 1o our audit of
tre francial staterments in the LUK, inciudiryg the Qur resoo-sibility is to read the other nformation
FRC's tthical Standard, ano we have fulfiled our ang, N cong so, consicer whether the other
other ethical responsinilities ir accordance win Infcrmation is materiaby inconsistert with the

: S

€5e reguirements dnancial staterments o our knowlecge obtained in

A ‘f\,,
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

tne course of the audit or Dthierwise appears 10 be
materialy misstated [fwe identfy such matenal

ncons’stenc

we are regu'red to determine whether this gves rise

=rif i1 the financal
staterments themseives. 1T, based on the work we

to a2 matera: misstaems

lude that there
maternal misstatement of tre other in

are required to report that fact

Fave performed, we © 1S a

farmation, we

We have nothing G regort ir thig regard.

Opinions on other matters prascribed
by the Companias Act 2008

the Direciors’ report 7or fhe ﬁhanc ayea’ for
which the fnancial statements are pregared is

consistent with the financial

= e Strategic report and Directors' report have

ceen prepared In accorcance witt applicasie

‘2gal requIrements

Matters on which we ars reguired {o
repor: by sxcepiion

In the lignt of the <nowledge anc understarding of
the
ervironmert obtained \n

Group and the FParent Company and its

the course of the audit,
we nave not idenafies material misstalements n
the Strateqc repart or Cireciors regort.

We have
follo

norhing to regccrt i respect of the
wing matters .n relation to which the

Comparies ACT 2008 requires Us 1o repart 10 you If,

rn our opinicn:

a
ororeturns adequa:e for our aude have not peean

Gl vISITe By LS O
a. satermerts are not
ords and

« the Parernt Company finan

<
r agreemert with the accourting rec

ies or apparent maternal misstaterrants,

dequate accouting records have not pear kepl

o certain discicsures of Drectors remurerahicn

specified by law are not made, or
Y

3
(@R

« we have Nat recawed ail the infarmatcon 3

explznations we requite for our audi

&gxpamiﬁéméeg of divectors
AS exptairiec mo

resnonsic

e fully in the Diractorg
tes statement set out on pages 29 ard

30 the Directors are responsibie “or the oreparat.cn
of the fir

that they give a true and

ancial siatements arc for te ng satished
‘arview, and for sach
nternal cortrot 25 the Direciors determine s
necessary o enable tne preparaicn of financ.al
statemernts that are free frorm material
o fraud o

rrsstaiement, whcther due Srerrar

I oreparing tae firancial staternents, the Directors
are responsdle o
Parent Ccrrpany's a
congern, discios ~g. as apf\aabl . mretters related
to going concen and using
nass of accounticg uniess the Dire
intend to liguidate the Group or the Parent
Cormnpary or 1o cease ogerations, o have NG

reglstic alternative but to do <o

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements

Dur chjec
aoout wrhether the financal 5

veS are 1o oblan reas

ent, wheather due
an aud\mr's report
onagle assurance is

are free from maensl missizte
to fraud or €ror, and bt ssue 3
that i~clu
a nigh evel

’h

des our comion. Reas

of aszurance, butis Aot 3 guarantes miat
an gudit congducted i accordarce wt iSAs [UK)

w ! slways detect z mateda. missiatement when i1

ex:sts. M sstatemenis can arise fromn fraud or error
and are considered mater al i aly o i the

e trey could reasc
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation as o what extent the P e obtaining an undersianaing of policies and
audit was considerad capable of procedures in place regarding compliance
detecting irregularities, including

wit~ laws zand regulations, incuding Now

fraud cormpliance witn such policies s rmonitored

rregulanties, incluaing fraad, are nstances of 1on- ard enforced, obtainng an understanding of

compliares with laws and regulations, We design managemeft's process for dertfying and
preceduras niire with our responsibilities, outined respONGing (o fraud risks, INClUGNg prograns
anave, o datect rregularities, inclucig fraud The and comrots established o address risks =

. i i r othergise feVielal &ter 5
nsk ¢ not detecting a materal mi :s‘:mmeﬂt due o idertifed, or otherwise prevent, deter and

. ietect fraud, and how seror management
fraud is higher tnan the risk of not cetectng one detect ‘raud, and how ser J

foe . : : Altors those programs a el
resulting frer error, as fraud may involve delinerate monitors thase progrars and contre

conceziment by, for exarnpie, ‘orgery o intenuonal : « review of board rreeting minutes In the pericd

o sr@p'ﬂsahta ions, or through collusion. Tre ard up to date of saning
ent to whicn our procedures are capab.e of :

. Poe We gstessed the susceptibiity of ine Group's
det*” rGorreguiant es, |r‘dud;ng fraud s detailerd P J i
) Lo fhnancia. siatements to mawenal misstatemert,
below However, tre primary responsibility for the : o ‘ o .

‘ . . ) : inciud ng how fraud magrt occur by nolding a
prevent:ion and detection of fraud rests with both
discussien within the audit tearn which included:
mose charged with governance of the enbity and

mManagement : » igertification of reliaed part'es;

QOur approach was as folloy : » understanding the Group's business, the

d ] conirol envircnment and aszessing the inheren:
= We ohbtaned an understanding of the egal and

reguatory frameworks that are applicable w the
Group and deterrminad that the maost significant
are thase that relate G reporting framework (FRS

atel=h

102 ang the Cormpanias Act 2006;

nsk far relevant assertions at the sigrifcant
account level including discussions with
rrianagement to gain an understanaing of
those areas of the financial statements which

were susceptible 1o freud, as identilied by
= We undersiond how Fern Trading Limited s management, and

complying with those framewaorks by making ~
s considered the conftrols that the Group has

enguires of managerren:, those charged with o i ‘ ~
estaplisred to address risks identfed by

governance and those responisible for legal

and comolance procedures as to any fraud risk

framewo ko owithin the eruty, including whether
a formal fraud nsk assessmernit 1 completed. We

the entity or that otherwise seek to prevent,
deter or detect fraua includirg gaining an
understanding of the entity tevel controls and

L solicies that the Group applies.
corrobarated our enquiries trrough review of the P ’ P 3pp

» Based on this understanding we designed our !
Ldit procedures todent fy non-comphance H

folliowing documentation or performarce of the
following proceaures
wth such laws and regulations Gur procedures

» Gotaining an understanding of entity-level , ]
involved testing of journa. entries through

controls and considering the influence of the i
jourrat aralytics rocls witn “occys on marual

control environment;

: i
B4 i
5
Stabpobbiniieri v M et w;awii
1 eninat ST 3 @wm i
. ;S £ AL
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

journals, large of unusuat transactions, or journals
meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business; tested accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
staterments; and inspecting correspondence,

If any. with the relevant licensing or regulatory
authorities.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

D C o g e e
ewdr O3 OLYLAT P OGTT

This report is made solely to the Company’s
mermbers, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit
wark has been undertaken so that we might state

1

to the company’s members those matters we are
required 1o state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility 1o anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our
audit work. for this report, or for the opinians we
have formed.

Fondsbio 7\ LR

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Belfast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss account for the year ended 30 June 2042 .
(restated

2022 2021

- ‘ . e £'000 LEooo
Turnover 1 711,830 425,202

Cost of saes {420,883) (221,277}
Grossiproﬁt e e ot et e s s 2 e e A e 300,947w - 204025
Adiministrative expenses (258,251) {231.844) i
Operating profit/(loss) T a2e% @mis)
Cther income 1 3,550 9454
Ircorme frarr other fixed geset mvestments 5,249 44G i
Skare of operating prohin joint veriture - 1,755
Frofiton disposa’ of subsidiaries and join veriure 8 29,533 28,568
Cther imerest recevakle and simiar ircome & 130 997
{36.067) ‘

irterest payable and similar charges 6 {33,554)
Profit/{toss) before taxation 47,604 (22,663}
Tax on proit/loss) 7 (16,294) {8,349}

Profit/(loss) for the financialyear 31,310 :

-(31.612)
Attributable to Fern 37,932 (27.005)
Minority interest {6,622) {4.007)

31,310 (31012

A

L results refate to cortnuing act vities Note 26 detans the prior period adjustrnents
Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2022

{restated)
2022 2021

£000 £000

ST R AN R Sl R B e T P L B P B IR P I

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 31,310 (31.012)

Other comprehensive income
Movemenis in cash flovs hedges 77,985 44983

Foreign exchange gair/({loss! or retranslatior of suosidiaries 18,561 (333)

96,546 44,650

Other comprehensive income for the year :
127,85 13,638

Totat comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to
+« Owners of the parent 134,478 17.645 ;
(6,622) (4.007) |

¢« Non-controlling interests
127,856

12638
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Groug balanee sheet as at 30 Juna 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
Naote E'OOO F'0C0

R R A 40 s e A h e+ T v o AREEeE AT e o a T TOPY 800 ks S oG AYERIALA Smbakn amn nn eake b o ERRR e S o e & R AR e Y Rt 8 A iy

F|xed assets

Intzngile assets 2 557,708 576739
Tangiole assets g 1,893,430 1581682

Investrients 10 35,452 11,000
currem as,s,e‘s - B aiot e P oS,
Stocks 12 184,479 94711

Dentors Including S138m (2021 £16 Lrr; 13 623,161 598.002
duc after rrore than ore vear)

Cash at hanx Jnd  nand 11 256,415 172478
T I - »1064055 - 86:@1-
Crétririlr:ors:émounts faliing due within che ﬁe;rr - i 7 14 S (256i52) (202 0‘39) - H
Net current assets ST MMWBMH?NQWOB 665 152 ;
Total assets less current tiabilities - - 3 294 493MM W? 83? 553"‘
 (992425) (503330} ‘
T e26200 wwa
Net assets - 2219448 1887842
Capital and reserves

Calizd up share Capita. 18 161,662 142,676
Shara premigr account 364,882 173,118
Meorger reserve 1,635,569 1440257
Cash flow nedge reserve 63,006 {14,979}
Drr ﬂ arw'J 53 HCCOLTL (2 770) 136 049
Total shareholders funds . 72 222,349 - 1894 121 -
"Jﬁ n-com r").lmg Interests (2 901) 3721

Capltai employed 2 219 448 1 887 842

Credltnrs amounts fatlmg due after more Ihan ohe year

Prow ons for hablhtzes

MNote 26 detaiis the prior pertod ad;ustrments

These concoldaied finarcal staterments on pages 35 to 92 were aporoved by the 3card of drectors on
16 December 2022 ana are 3igr.ad or ther sehad oy,

PS Latham
Drirector

Regstered number 12601626
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Lompany halance sheet as at 30 June 2022

2021
£000

R EE SRR RESTYA R AR R R A ik BhORE RREE REEY

MNote

FECAr— e Y OGO ' S S I L L LITLUS TELE AT SRR

Fixed assets

fan)

investrments 1 2,539,978 2,116,366
Curren-t assets - S o

Debtors 13 39,888 50,383
Cash at bank ard in hard H 6,422 1523
- - ' S 46,310 51906

Creditors: amounts falting due within one year 14 {449) {(22,924)

Net currenAt assets 45,861 28582
Totat assets less current liabilities T T T ases,eze 2145748
Netassets 2585839 2145348
Capital and reserves

Catled v share capital 18 161,662 149,676
Saare prarmium account 364,882 173118
Mergar resarye 1,986,457 1,791,145
Proft and loss aceouns: - 72,838 ) 31409 B

2,585,839 . 145.‘34 8

Total shareholders’ funds

The Company has erected to take the exemnption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to
present the Company proft and loss account. The oroht for the financia. penod dealt with in the financ al
staterrents of the Company was £236,742,0C0 (2021 icss of £157,504,000)

These Frnancial staternents on page: 35 to 92 were approved by the Board of directors on 16 Gecember 2022
and are signed on therr behalf by:

PS Latham

.
UIrector

Registerad rumber 12601636
|
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Group statement of changes in sguity for the vear ended 30 June 2822

Calted up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holdars interest {restated)
{restated) {restated) funds
(restated]}
£°000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 E'000 E£'000 E'000
e 138435 - 1535569 {63537 1A41:85% 1668982 9570 1678552
- - - 3875 12828 17703 - 17703
Balonee as al 1 Juy 138435 ~ 1535565 53,962) (77356) 1686685 9570 1696255
2027 lrestated]
- - - - (27,005 {27,005} (4,007; {31.012;
- - - 44983 - 44,983 44983
Frreign exsnargs gan
Cr ST darsaton o - - - - (333 (333 - (333}
ar COMIprerer:
rme/lexne - - - 44383 {333 44650 - 44650
e year resta
- - 44 383 (27.338; 17.645 (4,007; 13638
- - - - 1831 1,831 (Laa2 {14}
- = (195.312) - 195312 - - -
11685 173118 - - - 184,803 - 184,803
/5 carwce;lsd (444) _ - - (£,299] {6,843} - (6.843)
durrg tme year
;éf”(r’;“ipj 149,676 173118 1440237 {14,979} 136,049 1884121 31721 1887842
Balance as at
1 July 2021 (restated) 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 {14,979) 136,049 1884.121 3721 1,887,842
Profit for the - - - - 37.932 37,932 (6,622) 31,310
financial year
Changes in market
value of cash flow - — - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreign exchange
loss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries
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Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders’ interest
funds

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 E'000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77,995 18,562 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense) for
the year
Total comprehensive .
income/({expense) for - - - 77,985 56,493 134,473 (6.622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger _ _ 195,312 _ (195,312) _ - _
reserve
Shares issued during 11,986 191,764 - - - 203,750 - 203,750 <
the year
Balance as at
30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 (2,770} 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448

Note Z€ details the prior period adiustmerts

Company statement of changes in squity for the year ended 30 June 2022 i

Called Share Merger Profit Total ;
up share premium reserves and loss sharehotders’ i
capital account account funds :
o ) ) £'000 £000 E000 E'000 £000
Babnce at ncomoration . - - - |
Loss for the financial year L hS?,“:’;O4] (157’,504)w
Utilisation of merger reserve - - (195,312} 165,312 -
Total comprehenswe ncome - =7 sz 37808 157504 |
Shares issued during the year 150,120 173118 1986457 - 2309695
Shares cancelled during the year (444) - - 16,309] (6,843
Balance as at 30 Jure 2021 T 1a0676 173118 1791145 31,409 2145348
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741 236,741
Utilisation of merger reserve - - 185,312 {195,312) - :
Total comprehensive income T - - 195,312 41,;"«2“;7” o 23;,;41: §
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - - 203,750 ‘
Shares cancelled during the year - — - - - 4
Balance as at 30 June 2022 11662 364882 1986457 72838 2585839
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Group statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2022

Shanstnany R R R R O PO L 20 J0 S

Cash flows from operating activities

Proft/ioss) for the financial year attnbutabie 10 1ne owners of tne paren

Adjustments for:
Tax on proft/{oss)
Imterest recsivabie and aimilar mcorme

Interest payaole and other smilar charges

Proft on dispesal of subsiciaries and jort veniure
income from joint venture

‘ncome Tom fixed asset investzris

Armortisation and imparment of ittangible fxed assets

Deoraciation of tangicle Axed assets

Maon-cash sta® cos

fMoverne~ts on derivatves and foreign extnange
INCrease Ir s1ock

{(Increasel/decrzase n debiors
Increase/igecreasel in creditons

Non-corntroling interests

ax r@ceuncﬂrald,

Net cash generated from operatmg actnvntles

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchasc of sussidiary Jnderiakings (ret of cash acguired:

Sale of subsicary undertakings ard Joint venture
Purchasc of tangicle asses

Purchase of intangile assats

Purchaze of unbsted invesimen:s

Sale of unbisted Investrenis

interest receryed

\nft e f' o wmt JFP ure

Net cash used in mvestlng actuvat:es ‘

Cash flows from financing activities
Froceeds rom Anarc g

Inferest pa.od

Hrocoeds “om share ssue

Net cash generated from fmancmg act

Net (decrease)llncrease in cash and cash equwalents

Cash and casr eq

wwvalents gt the beginning of the yvea

txchange gaing or cas™ and cash equva.ents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

trestated)
e 2022 221
o £'000 £000
57,932 (27.005)
7 16,294 £,349
6 {130) 1997)
6 33,554 56068
2 (29,532) (28,568)
- (1.755)
{5,249) (445)
8 45,762 37704
5 104,802 84,697
3,040 5,875
(18,044) 19.788)
(19,829) (5701)
31,022 245274
{173,956) 6,871
2 (6.622) (4.007)
25,853 w75
41897 341517
(52,377) (221,987)
101,778 34,507
(322,446) (110,457,
(7.222) 1875)
(124,203) (29.617)
13 105,000 20,133
6 130 997
- 1,077
2993400 (306.226)
201,719 -
{32,319) (35,552)
(32,013 (212,676)
12 203,750 184,353
18 - 6,339)
0 zanaar (70.268)
) " sze94 (34577
172,478 206,688
T zas 367
. 256415 172478

Note 26 detai s tre oricr period aajustments
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Statement of accounting policies

Company information
Fern Trading Limided Utne Cormpany'} is a ornvate comoany imited by shares and incorporates on 14 May
20 20 The company is domiciled in Engiand, the United Kingdom and registeraes under crrrpafy surnber
12601636, The adares: of the registered office 15 at 6 h Fiocr, 33 Holborn, London, England, 2CIN 2HT
Statement of compliiance

Tre Grouap and ndividual financal statements of Fern Trading Lirmited have teen prepared in comaliance

with Uriied ingdorn Accountng Standards, including Financial Pf:-rmrtmg tarnidard 102, "The Financiat
Reportirg Standard apph ~able in the United Xingdom a~d the Republc of Ireland ((FRS 1027 and the

Companies Act 200

Basis of preparation of financisl siatements

-

e financial siatements have been prepared 0N e gom.o concern pasis, under the Hsterical cost convent.on,
as rrodified by the recogriten of certain inancial assets and laoiites measured at fair value, and in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and agplicab Le accolLnung standards ir tre United Kingdom The

prncipa. accomtmg policizs, wihych have been applied conzistently throughout the yzar, are set out below. |

Tne conscldatea firancial statements include the results ¢f all subsidiaries owned by Fern Trading Limited
,which a

as listed 0 note 29 of the annual financiai statements Certain companiat of these subsid ar
bsted in note 29, have taken the exernption from an audit for the year ended 30 June 2022 permitted Dy‘

section 479A of Comrparies Act 2006, in order to aliow these subsidiaries o take the audit exemption, the 3
parent carmpany has gven a statuiory guarantee, in lire ‘-N;tl‘ section 479C of Comparies Act 2006, of ait ;

the cutstanding net iablities as at 30 June 2022

Going concern

The Group's arnd the Compary's business activives, together wit the factors likely to affect its future
developrent, performance and posit on are set out the Strategic Report on pages £ 10 14 The financial
postion of the Graup, its cask flows, liguidity position and borrawing facilities are described n the firancial
review on pages 23 1o 27. The principal risks of the Groun are set out on pages 16 to 18

Trie Directors perform an annual gomng concern review that considers the Group's abdity to meet it
financial obligations as they fal! due, for 2 period of at least tweive months after the date that the financal
siatements have been sigred

Due to the chzllenging market conditions management have performed an assessmen: o determne
whether therzs a-e any matena, unceriainties arising that could cast sigrificant doubt on the ability of the
Groun to contirue as a going concern. No significant issues have been noted and as a conseguence, the

cireciors believe that the Group i€ well piacec 1o manage its pusiness risks successfully despiie the current
Lriceriain economic outlook.

L P )
e i
REERY i)
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Statement of accounting policies

Iri reacning this corclusion tha Directors bave revewead the financial :impact of the wncertainty on the
Group's balance shieet, profit and loss and cash flows with specific cons’deration given o the following:

A reverse stress test was perforrmed on the Dase case forecast to ascertar what scenarios would result in

risks 1o the Groups Jguiaity position. The test showed even in an unlikely scenar ¢ of a significant reductior

of revence of 46%, the Group is able to sustain its current operational costs and meet all abil

as they fall
due for at least a year from the date of igning these firancial statements when utilising the avalacle
factlies within the Group

The CGroup has a number of financing facilites that contain covenants requiring the Group to rmamntamn
specified financial ratics and corr}pi with certa.n other Gnancial covenanis. These finar cial coverants are
tested at least muarter\.y, and, at the dare of this report, tne Group s in compliance witn all its Ainancial
coverants, Stress tests on reasonably plausitle scenanos such as a signifcant reduct:or in EBITDA of 34%

over trme have peen used to gsiess tne covenanst requ rements for the at least the next twewe months ang
aill covenants nave been “orecast to be met even under the siress test scenario, 1N the goirg concern geriod

ACIC June 2022, the Growp nad avallable cash of £256m and headroom avaiiabie of £441m including 2
ravolving credit facility of £210. Dept of

of E956m gayable in more tnan one year Tre Groups facilites, regayment dates and uncrawr amounis are
set out In Note 16 Loans ang Borrowings

£88m s due o mature in less thar ore year, wite the rerra nder

Key accourtng judgement ang estimates nave been miade with consideration g ven to the current

economic cutloor Key estimates include loan recoverab lity, valuauon of wor< in progress,
decommiss.oning provisions, impairment of goodwili ard investments, buzimess combrriations and hedge
accountng. Detals are s2t out on pages 50 10 51

Basec cn the anove assessmernt of current econornic condtinns ard the impact on the Group's fnancial
position, licuwd.y ana ﬁmamcwai covenants, the directors have concludea thar tne Group and Company nas
acequate resources to contnue in operaticral exsstence for the next 12 morths Thus, they contirue to
acop! the gong concers basis of accouning in precaring the annual finarcial statements,
Erempiions for qualifying entities under FRE 162
FRS 102 atlows a cualify.rg erdity certain disclosure exemptiors, subjecito certain condittors, which have
pbeen complec with, including nenfication of, and no objection 1o, tne use of exemotions oy the Company's
shareholders,
The Cornpary has taken advantage of the follcwing exermption

frore prepanrg a statement of cash flows, on tre pasis that 1t 5 a gualiying ertity and the consalicated

M flows, mcluded in trese Anancial staterments, ncivded the Company's cash ‘o

o
&
A

caragrachn 33.7.
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Statement of accounting policies

Basiz of consolidation

Tne consoldated francia: statements include the resulis of Ferr Tracing Limited and all its subsicdhary
undertakings nade up to the same accounting date All intra-groug balances, transact ons, Inceme and
expenses are elrmirated in full on consolidaton The results of subsidiary undertakings acqu red or dizposed
of during the pericd are :nciuded or excluded from the income siatement friom the effective date of
acqJdsion or disposa.,

Al undartax ngs over whicn the Group exerc.ses control, being the power to govern the financ.al and
operating policies so a2 to obtain benefts from thar act'vities, are consclidated at subsidiary undertakings
Where a subsidiary has cifferent accounting policies to the Group. adiusiments are mace to those
supsidiary financial staternents ¢ apply the Group's accounting pol cles waen prepanng the consolidates
financial statements,

Any subsidiary undertakings o associates soid or acgured during the year are incwded up to, or from, the
dates of change of cortrol or charge of significant influence respectvely.

Where the Group has written a put ophicn over shiares held by a non-controling mterest, the Groun
derecognises the non-controliing interest and instead recognised contingent deferred considsration liability
within cther payables for the est'mated armount iikely to be paid to the non-controling interest on exercise
of those options. The residual amount, representing the differarce between any consideration paid/payabe
and e ron-conirolling nterest’s share of net assets, is recognised as goodwill. Movements in the
estimated liabitity after inidal recogn ticn are recognised as goodwill.

Forelgn currenay

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group financial statements are preserted in pound sterling ard rounded to thousands

Trie Company's functional and presentation currency s pound sterling and rounded to thousands.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functonal currency using the spot exchiznge rates at
the dates of the trarsactions. Al each period end foreign currency monetary iterns are transiated using the
cles:ng rate, Non-manetary terns measured at histoncal cost are transated using tne exchange rate at the
Cate of the transact.on and non-monretary tems measured at fair value are meazured using the exchange
rate wher fair value was dewermined. Foreign exchange gaing ard losses resulling from the settlerment of
transactions and from the translanen at pencd-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liacilites
denomirated in foreign currencies are recognised in the orofit and loss account

Al fareign exchange gains and lossas are presented in the profit and (055 account wiahin ‘administrative
expenses’

iii. Translation

Tre trading resulls of Group undertakings are trarslated into poLnds steriing at the average exchange rates
for the year. The assets and labitties of overseas undertakings, inciudnig goodwil: and farr value adjustments
arising on acau siuon, are translated at the exchange rates ruung at the year-end Exchange acjustments
arising from tne retranslation of ope~ing net investments and from the trarslaticon of tne orohis or losses

at average rates are recognised in 'Other comprehensive ncome’ and allocated o non-cortroling interast
25 appropriate
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Turnover

The Group operates 3 nurmber of ciasses of business. Revenue is derived by the *ollowing

¢ Ernergy
Turnover from the sale of electricity generated by solar farms, wing generating assets, reserve sower
olants and bromass and landfil sites s recognised on an acaeruals basis in the nanod inwhich t
generated Revenue fram ong-erm government backed offtake agreements, suca as the Renawsble
Obligation Cert®caton ("ROT") scheme are accrued 0 the periad in wnich it relates to. Turnmover from the

sale of fertiiser by ‘Diomass and langfit businesses is recognised on ohysica. dispatch.

* Heaithcare
Turnover is reccgnised wher the sigrificant risks ang rewards of ownershup of retiremert properties rave
nasted 1o the buyer {or legal completion;, the amaount of reverue can be recognised reliabiy, and it

sCconomMe beren

associated with the rarsacton wl flow to tne entty Turmover

A
5
D

"1

L

QF{

nised at the far value of the consideration received for heatthcare services provided in the norms!

35, and 15 shown net of VAT Tumaver s recogrised basad on tha date the sarvica 1s

+ Lendirg
Turnover regresents arrangernent fees and interest on loans provided W customers, net of any vatue
added fax. Loan interes: s recogrised on an acorual pasis in tine with cortracwsl terms of tre loan

agrecrnent. Arrangement fees are spread over the ife of trie loan .o which they relae

» Fibre 3
Turnover 1s recognised at the fair value of the corsideration received ‘or internet conrectivity and related :

IT services provided in the normat course o business, and 15 shown net of VAT Turnaver s recoan<ed
nased on the date the service is provided, 1
+ House buiding

“urnover is recogrised on lecs! completion of the zale of property, lane and commerc al spaces Turnover }

r—r"(’

from hous ng assoc ztion conracts ‘s recognised by reference 1o the value of waork comoleted as a ‘

oroporton of tre total contract value

Emploves benefits

The Group provides 2 rarge of benefis to employeas, including annaal bonus arrangements, paid holiday
arrangements and defined coeninbution nens con pars.

i. Short-term benefits
Srort- tgrm benefi incwding holday cay and otner simiar ron-roneiary nenef s are recogrised as an
experse in the pernca in which the serv ce s receved

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

A aefined conmbution plar 15 & pens.on pian under wnich the Group pays fxed coninbutons into a
separate entity Orge the ~onwbut:ons have teern g3 d tne Group has ro ‘urtner cayment obligatons
The contr but ons are re

( ‘)
LO

>

rised as an expense wher trey are dus. AmMounts ~ot pa\d ars 5HowW N

accruals o the palance shieet Tre assets of the piah are reid separately from ne Groug nordecenaenty |
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iii. Share-based payments

Cash-zettied share-based payments are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date The Group
recognises a liabiity at the nalance sheet date bated on these fair values, taking inc account the estmated
numaoer cf units that will zcually vast and the current proporticn of the vest.rnig period,

(Cranges in the value of this liab-lity are recogrnsed a1 the income statement
The Group nas no equity-seitled arrangements.

Finance cogls

Finance costs are charged to trie profit and loss account over the term of the debt using the efective
interest method so that the amaunt charged 1s al @ constant rate on the carrying armount issue costs are
inttizily recc gmsec: as a reducion in the proceeds of the azsociated capital instrument and released (o the
profit and loss account over the term of the debt

Current and deferred tax

Tax i recognised in the statement of income and refained earnings, except that a change atirioutadle D an
tem of Income and expense recoqgrised as otrer romprp%enr NE INCorme or to an iterm recogrised directly
in equity is also recogrised in other comprenensive income or directly In equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date in the countries where the Compary operates and
gererates income.

Ceferred balances are recognised ir respect of all timing d ferences that have orginated but not reversed
by the Balance sneet date, except thar,

» The recogntion of deferred tax assets 1s tmites (o the extent t T iz probable that they will be recovered
z2gainst the reversal of deferreq tax lianites or other future :axacle profits; and

« Ary ceferred tax bzlances are reversad of and when all cord:t'ons for retaining associated ax auwowances
have beer met,
Deferred tax halances are not reccgn.sed in respect of permanent aiffer s except in respect of busines

comb nations, when deferred tax is recognsed on the differerces oatween \he fair values of assets acqurred
and the future tax deduchons avalable far tham and the differences between the farr vaiues of Labilties
acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax Deferred fax is determired Lsing tax rates and laws

that have been enacted or substanively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Business combinations and goodwill
Busiress combinat.ons are accounied for by aoplying the purchase method

The cost of a pusiness combnalion is the far value of the consideration given, izbilities ircarred or
zssurned and the equity instruments issued plus the costs directly attributable to the business comb.nation
Where control s achieved In stages the cost s the cons desation at the date of each transaction

Or acquisitifon of a business, fair valdes are attributed to the identifiable assets, liahilities ang contingent
lazilities unless the “ar value cannot be measureg relahly, ‘'n which case the value is ncorporated as
goodwill. Where he fair value of contingant lianiities cannot pe relizkly measured they are disclosed
on tne same basis as other contingenrt lak:ltie
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GCondwil recognised represernts the excass of the fair value and directly attr buiahle costs of the ourc
consideration over the fair values to the Group's miterestin e wenufiable net assets, lia tiss and

contingent liabilities acguirec.

On acquisition, gandwll is allocates 0 cash-generatng units {CGU'S] tnat are exoected 10 benefit fram

tre combinatior.

Goodwili s amortised over 1ts expocted useful life which s determined based on the estimated Lespan of
J

d
the assets acquirec Where the Group is unab.e to make a eliable estrate of useful ife, goodwill is
amortised over a pericd rot exceeding fen years, Goodwill s reviewsd ana assessed ‘or imparmeant

ndicators on an annual basis and any impairment is charged (o the orofitand loss

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed azsets are stated at cost less depreciaton, Depreciaton is prm:ced af rates Calculated to wrte
cff the cost of fixed assets less ther estimated residua’ va.ueg, ovar ther expectad Jseful tves. Deoreciat on
commences rom the date an asset ¢ brougnt into service wand and asses in the courze of construct.or
are not ceprecated. The esurated Lseful lives are az follows

3% to 5% straight ire

try 23% strai

construct mn are stated at cost Thease satea unt | they are

Whiere factors, such as techno.ogical acvancerment of changes in market price, indcate trat resdual value
or useful life have changed. the residual value, useful life or cepreciatior rate are arended prospeciivaly to
raflect tne new circumstances. Tre 3558t are reviewsad for mpairment * the above factors indicate that the

Carrying amodnt may be impairen,

a
recognised witrmin profic or loLs

Intangiole assets are stated at cost less accurulated amornzation and accomulared mmpa rment losses
Arcruzaton s calcdlates, usng the stra gl T—Hr‘e rretrod, to allocate the gzpregatle arrount of the assels
es

to therr residual vaises over their estimated useful hves, as follows

b
0
i
S
vl
a7}
=
G
=
m
>
al
)]
3
[
m
wr
At}

o ncloded in aurmiristrative expaenses

Deveourrent ngris re.ate 1o piarnng conzert o culd a sclar farm and a2 wind far acgures on acal siher

nd lesses on disposais are cetermined oy comparing e proceeds with the carrymg amount and are
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Where faciors, such as changes in rnarker price, indicate that resicuai value or useful life have changed
residual value, useful life or amariisaron rate are arrended prospectively to refiect the new crrcamistances

e assels are reviewed formoairment I the above factors indicate that the carrying amcurt may
be rmpaire

Lenses
Atincepton tne Group assesses agreernents that transfer the right to use assets. Tne assessment cons.ders
whether the arrargement is, o7 containg, a lease baSPd on the substance of the arrangemert and whether

tne lease should be classified as e ther a finance lease or an operating lease.

Leases of assets trat transfer substantially ail the risks and rewards incidenta. to ownership are classified as
Nanca eases are capsalsed at the commencerment of the lease at the fair valu

F e
leased asset and depreciated over the srorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lfe of th

z

Assets are assessed ‘or impairment at each reportng date

Leases That do not transfer all the rizks and rewards of ownership are classifed as operating leases
Fayments under operating eases are charges to the pfcﬁ‘ and loss accourt ar a straignt-tine bas.c over the

=

penod of the lease.

Investmentis
Trne Company holds investments in a subsidiary at cost less accumulated impairment [osses If an

pairment loss is subsegquently reversed the carryirg armount of tre investment is increased to the revised
estrrate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent tqat the revised carrying amournt does not exceed
tre carrying amount that would nave been determined had no impairmens loss been recogrisaed in prior

perods Areversal of animpairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account

ash

Cash nc¢ludes cash in hard and deposits repayable on demand Restricted cash represents cas for whicn
tne Group does rot have immrediate ang direct access or for which requ.atory or legal requererments restrnct
tre use of the cash

Stocks

Raw materials, spare parts and consumables are vatued at the wwer of cost and net realisable value, Where
necessary, a provision is made for obsolere, slow-moving and defective stock. Costis determined on the
first-in, first-cut (FIF0) methca

Fue! stocks (MEM and iitter) are valuea on an average cost gasis over one to two months and provision for
unusable litter is reviewad monthy and apolied o off-site stock

Fuel stock of straw nas beern valued at the historicar cost per tonne of straw. A prov'sion for unusable straw
is identifiec on an individua: stack bass ard is reviewed monihily, Stocks are used on a first in, first out
("FF O basis by age of straw.

Stocks of ash at Fibrophos are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value to the Group.

Stocks of procerty develocpment wor< in progress TWIR) are stated at tne lower of cost and net realisable
value Cost comprices direct matenais anc, where applicable, direct abour costs and those overheads that
have been incurred 10 bringing the stocks o their present locations ard condition,
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At each reporting gate, an assessmeant 15 rade for imoarrmert. Ary excess of the carryimg amowunt of

ocks over its estimated selling price iess costs o comgpiete and seld s recogrised as an mpairrnent loss
through the profit and loss account. Qeve sals of irnpairment losses are aso recognised i the profit and
loss account,

Acorued Income

Accrued incomea on toans is calculated at the rate of interest set cut in the lcan contracts Energy ncome is
accraed over the period ir which - has been generated

Dieferred income
Deferred iIncome is recogrused it accorda with t~e tarms set cut in tre contact. Deferred ‘roome s
in the cenod W which i relates.

‘K

cleased o the profit and ioss account

Financial instruments

he Groun nas chosen o adeot Sections 11 and 12 of FRS S respect aof finarcal irstrumenis
Financial assets

Basic fingncal assets, inciuding trade and other receivables and cash and bark balances are imitially

recognized af trarsaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a inarcing transacuon, wnere me
transacticn s measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a markeat rate of interes:

Such gssets are subseguently carned at amort sed cost using the effective interes! method

At the end of 2ach recorting period Gnancal assets measured at amerised cost are assessed for onjective
evidence of imparrment If an asset s impared the irpairment 1oss is the aifference between tne carryirg
amaount ana the presentvalue of the estimaed cash flows discounted at Tme assetl's onginal effectve irterest

rate. The impairrment (032 13 recogrised 10 profit or oss

Orther Anancial assets, Incluaing mvestiments in equity irstrurnents wicn 2re not subsidiares, assocates or
jomt ventiras, are intaily rreasured at fair vawe which s normally the trarsaction price. Such aszels are
subseguently carried at farr value and the changes in farr value are recognized in orofit or loss, excest thar
investmients v equty INstruments that are rol pabecly traged and whose fa r values cannot be measured
relably are measured at cost iess imparment

Financial azsets are derecogrisec wher (a) the Cortraciual ngnis 10 me casn Lows fram the asset exore or

f
are seited, cr (b) substan: \o\ly a. the rnisks ard rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferrec
another party or i} cortrol of tne asser has been tranasferred "o another carty who has tne practca abﬂity

to unilaterally zel. the asset to ar unrelatad third party w thout ivposimg acdinoral resinghons,
Financial Uabilities

EBazic finarcal lagnites, . s from felow Grolp companes

and oreference "ffa-ﬂ.gemeﬂt car

f"ﬁar*crgtraﬂsactc: where the cettinstr. TEea%s at tr 5 value of the future
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DCebt insiruments ara subsequenty carried at amortised cost, using the effective inerest rate method.
pa:d on the estapishment of loan facilites are recogrised as transaction costs of tre loan to the extent that
s probabie that some ar all of the facility will be drawn down In this case, the fee is deferred uniil the
draw-dowr occurs To the extert there is no evicence that it is probabie that some or all of the facility wil
e drawn down, the fee 15 capitslised as a gre-payment for liquidity servicas and amortised over the period
of the faciity to winch 't relates

Trade payables are obligatcns to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course

of busine

year or less [f not, they are presemed as nor-curert habdtes. Trade payaibles are recognised initiaily at
fransaction pree and subse y measured at amortised cost usng the effective interast method

from suppiiers Accounts payable are classified as current liaoilines il payment is dug within one

Francia. aabilives are cerecogrised when the Latility i extinguished, that s when the contractual obligatior
15 d.scaarged, canceded or expires

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives tne Group a legat or constructive cblgation
that probacly requires settlernent by & trarcfer of economic benefit, and a reliable estimate can pe mace of
the amount of the obligation

Provisions are charged as ar expense te the profit and loss account in the year that the Group becomes
aware of the obligaton, ard are reasured at the hest estimate at the balance s—est date of the expenaiture
requires to settle the obligaton, taking 1rto account re.evant risks and uncertanties

Hedging

The Group applies hedge accounting for transactions entered inwe to manage tne cash flow exposures of
borrowings Interest rate swaps are held to manage the interest rate exgosures and ae designated as cash
flow nedges of floating rate borrowings. Changes in the fair values of dervatives designated as cash fiow
hedges, and which are effective, are recognised cirectly int eguity. Any netfectiveness in the hedging
relationship (being the excess of the cumulative change i fair valug of the hed ng mstrument since
incepticn of the hedge over the cumuiative change in the fair valug of the ged tern since inceptcn of
tne hedge) is recognised ir: the proit and icss,

The gain or loss recognised in ofher comprehensive income 1s reclassifed to the profir and loss in
accordance with the cash flows of the hedged iterm. dedge accountng < discontinued when the heaging
irstrument expires, no longer meets the hedging critenz, the forecast transaction is no longer highly
probable, the hedged dedt instrurrent is derecognised or the nedging instrurnent 1s terminated.

Share capital

Crdinary shares issued by the Group are recognised n equity at the value of the oroceeds receiveq, with e
excess over nominat value being credited ta share premium.

Mon-controtling interests

Nen-controllrg interests are measured at ther proport.onate share of the acquiree’s identifiab:e net assets
T the date of acquisidtion.

3
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Hey accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financiai staterments in compiance with FRS 152 requres the use of certain cnit.cal
e}

accountng estirmates. It also requires management 10 exercise judgement in apgivirg the Company's
accounting pohces Estirnates and judgements are cortinuaily evaluated and are pasec on Mistorical
experence and other factors, ncluding expectatons of future events that are oelieved o be reasonable

under the crocumstances. The key estimates andg ludgements i preparning these financial statements are:

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers (estimate)

Lozns ana advances to customers, ircluding associated accrued income baiances, are revewed for
imparrmert on a quarterly basis in corsider rg the reed for a provision, management determing ther best
estirnaie of the expectea fuiure cash flows on a casc oy case bagic, As this estirrate reliez on a certam
rurrber of assumstions sbout fulure events wh.eh may d-fer rom aciual outcomes, inciudirg the
borrower's ability 1o repay interest and capital due in future penods, this g:ves nse U2 jucgentent as to
wheiher there 12 3 snorts

petween the carrying va.ue ana the fair value of the deotor balance.

Managemeant note 17at provisons agarist i0ans anc advances is & critical estimate and have thersfore

performed sensitivity analysis o~ the provision, The results of the sensitivty analysis canclude that 2 charge
of </~ ong per cent in the amount provided aga nst the estimatad balance at «isk woLld rave resulted in

£3.6m lesz/maore expenciture being cnarged 10 the ricome statermeant during o2 period See rote 13 for the
22

L)

carrying armount of the debters and grovisions at 35 June 2

ii. Value of property development work in progress (WIP') (estimate)
Property developrment WIP is reviewed for irmpa-ment or g perodic basis in corsiderng the neea for 2

"C_}

provisior, management defermine tnolr best est malte of the recoverasie value Mansgement engage an

2xpert external valugr 1o provide key assumptions about future events wih-ch may oif‘er frorm actual
outcemes, INcl.d rg oroperty valuatiors, rate of sawes 27¢ development costs

Theze estimates give rise to Judgernent as to whether trere s a shortfal, between the carrying vatue a~d the
fair valuie ¢f the balance as at the 30 June 2022 Post year end, managemert have 'ewewed fre

Y e
assumplons wsaed to determine the value of property cevaiopment WP and have ooserved ra changes ir

performance that would Impact the valuation as at tre 30 Sure 2022 See note 12 for the carryirg amoun:
of the property ceveloprnent WIR

iii. Purchase price agreement {Australian entities} (judgement)
The Groun owns two energy generating subsidiaries - Australla wiich ~gve enterec Iinig purcrase prige
agreements (FEA'S) in 2009 and 2021 The PPAs inciude a coriract for differences "CID" wheraby tre

0Z s2cion L2 as it s for the sale \Jf a non-firanc el iter ara the Cf5 s tyo cal for

-
re ibis belng accounted for under RS 102 section 23 a5 a revenue cortiact with

than revaluing e entre contract o far vaue,

iv. Business combinations (estimate)}
The cost of a business comoirat on 1s the Sz 5 N3 0eralon giver, lasites neurres ghus ne

CO3S arechy atinputakle 1o tre by

eSS

(%3}
il

and rore detais a7 prov des o pages 4¢




(54
ot

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Statement of accounting policies

v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for decommissioning costs 1s measured at management's best estmate of the oresent value
of the expenditure required to setile tha future oblgat on to return land on which there are cperational wind
and soar farms, 10 its origiral condition The level of the prowsmﬂs i determnined 10 a sigrificant degree by
tne estimaton of future dismantung and restoration costs, as well as t1e tring of dsmartement,

Wind Farms (estimate):
Managemeant rote that decornmissioning provisions 1s a critical estimate and have tnerefore verformed
£

Sena ity analysis. The resuits of the sensitaaty analyss conclude that o change of +/- one per cert in th

discoun: raze would have resulied in £2.1m increase/decrease 1o tre provision. See note 17 1

—t

the prov sion
recognised at 30 June 2027, Management utilise external exgedtise 10 provide an esbmated cost to
dismartie and Fave used a discount rate of 2% to reflect the time in va.ue of rmoney and the risks specific
to the obtigaticn

Australian solar farms (judgement):

The Group s n—q dired o restore the leasad premises of tne solar ‘arm to therr original condizon at the end

of the lease term. A provision was previously recogrised, however in the current year this juogement has

peen reassessed and management believe the wish to either take title of the assers for sither
cortirued use or to realise value through seling the assets and as such do not beigve that an cutfiow 1s

probable to settie this restoration okligation

UK Solar {estimate):

During the year, a third party performed an assessment of the base <ost of the decommissicning of tre
Groups UK solar farms. The findings have resalten in matenal change in the cost estirnate and therefore 2
provision has been recognised for the first trne on some sites The impact has resulted in g provision being

As at 30 June 2022 there is

ralsed for £18m to the balance sheet decommissioning Jability and fixed asse

5.

No mzact or the proft 2nd toss. Stes not affectew are addressed oelow

UK and French Solar {judgment):
Management believe that given the nature of these particu.ar assels, tne lessor may wish 1o either take title
ing the assets and as such do nat

of the assets for either coatirued use or to realise value tarough sel
bebeve that an outf.ow 1s protable 1o serftie this restoration obligation. Management will continue te monitor
the situation at eacn balance sheet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)

Tne value of goodwill held by the Group and imvestments in subsidiary undertakings helc by the Company
is reviewed annually for ‘mparment Tne recoverablity of these balances 1s cons dered with reference to the
present value of the estimated future cazh flows. These calcuations use cash flow projections which extend
forwara forecast ousiress ﬁerformance together with assumptionrs surrounding the expected life of the
asset, exteraally prepared forecasts and valustions, and any adjustiments required (o tne discount rate tc taks
account of business risk. “he esumated present valug of these future cash flows 13 sensitive to the Giscount
rate and growth rate used in the calculation, al of which require management's ludgermert Testing of re
carry ng value has been per"ormed dunng the year, wh ch has invowed several scenanos pemg moedeiled
Based an this tasting and the resultng imeairment recognised or invesiments, managemes

=Nt neadroom to support the value of goodwill and investments In subsiGiary enthes.

rhanagemert rote that impair~ent of goodwin and investments 1s a critical estimate ana have therefore
performed sensitiv iy analysis on the prowvsicon. The results of the sensitivity analysis conclude that a change
of +/- one per cent N the amount provided against the esumated Lalance at nisk would have resuited in

5.49m less/more expenditure baing charged o the income staternen: during the perod. See note 8 for
tre carrying amount of the goodwilt and mvestments at 30 Jure 2022
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I O

Analysis of turnover by category

2022
£000

PO P

tending activites

42,404
Encrgy oparations - solar, reserve power and wina 365,958
Energy operat onis - bromass and landfil 223,526
Healthcare cperations’ 45,978
—Home building 25,034
Fiore Qoerations e 8.930

711,830

T L TN C T VR

425,302

2021
£000
56552
175,820
141826

42,2656

4838

Incloded i .rocome brorm Bealincaie operalions 1s £174r1 (2021 B1L.2m) celaung o the sale of reliremenlvliage anits,

and F2R A (2021 £37 1l reiation 1o services rendered

Analysis of turnover by geography

eV e ¢ r v s oomseaoaiseanmeeres - L I HALCR A e PO Y38k e aB sy

603,911
Lurope s

2021
£000
384799
31893

Other income

2022
£'000

gz senann

Ligi-dated damages and insJrance procesds 3,550
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A

Thus is stated after charging/icreditngl:

Amiortisal an of intargibie

S SRR AR bbb B BT A hLERARE B Bhmad e am e aa o wmy

A55ets (note 8)

Imprront of ntargibie aszsets incte 31
Depreciation of tangile assets roie 9)

Audtors’ remuneraion — Company ang the Group's consolidatod

anancial siatements

Addtors rernuneranon — audit of Cornpany's subsidianes
Adritors’ remuneration — non-audic services

AUCors remuneranion  tax Complianco seraces
Difference or foreign exchange

Cperating «=ase rentats

f

122

i

2022
£000

B L RS RR RORT I I A S

37,849
7913
101,802

as

819
246
482
7,772
13,783

{restated)
2021

£000
37704

84,697
146

1134
513
672

4402

7502

Note 26 details the prior penod adjustments

£ NSO

«««««« g

Wages and =alance

o o i BT ot D AT JET e Y TR

SoCiEl serurity Cosis

Cther pension costs

2022
E£'000

85,432
7,041
3,233

95,706

2021
£:000

BT 2T N F Y K RO DO

41,383 :
3809
15676

46868

Thie Group provides a defined contribution schemes for 1ts employees in tre UK The amount recognised as

an expense for the defined contrioution scneme is shown in the table above.

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

2022
Number

2021 i

Nurmber

- L e B R R S8 % RARERS S

Froduction
Admirisiration

Directors

1,032
631
3

1666

698
348

1,050

Tne Company had one employee other than Directors during the penod ended 30 June 2022 (2021 nonel.
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B D SEANTNITI W

2022 2021
£'000 £'00C

I PR b e © 2O U b O T RS BRI 1 T TR RN A N T T AOAUATE uun e B ORE EER AR B s SATE SRR RO e (3 H B R O GAER i o DI SRR i ¢ TR R kb ey Sy PR E RS Y

Emoturnerits 176 163

During the year no cersicn contributions were made nrespact of tne drectors (2021 rore),

The Groug has no offer key raragemen: (20

LT N SO

A number of subsdiar es of the Groun operzte a casr-settlex LTiP 10 quadfying errployess whereny

ermrployees render services in exchange for catn, the amourt of which s determ ned by reference 1o the
vatation of the underlying subsidizry “he far value of the vability for the aware: made 15 measured at 2acn
reportng date and at tne setilement date. The far vawe 15 recognised cver tre vestirg penod. Tre amount
of expense recognised fakes into accourt tne best ava lable estimate of tne nurrber of units exnected to
vest under the service ard performance conditions wnoerly ng each awarc granted.

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

2022 2021
Number of Number of

b aan | ® SO b g 20201

T L T T R B T r Ty AR RS ana FEE B BB Ay  R B PPN

Oowlmr ou* tard'ng hmm e 1,914,751 1,640,000 ‘

Graruad dunng the penod 1,763, 563 274751

Closlng outstanding halance 3 678, 314 1 914 751 .

awards awards

The total charge ‘or the year was £3.133,000 {2021 £1.334.505] and at tre 30 Jure 2022 there was a
liaoiloy of £2 407000 ncluded w tin creditors grester than one year (2020 £1,334,000]

& oo

Interest receivable and similar income 2022 2021
3 £'000 £°000
Interast on baw bnla Aces 130 997

Interest payable and similar expenses 2022 2021
£000 i OOO

fierest ar Bank oorrowings 32,192 34,378
Amort salion of issue Cosis on bar < borrow ngs 2,597 1103
(Profv/ioss or denvaive inancal 1etruments ~ (1,235) 587

33,554 36068
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Fone e

a) Analysis of charge in year

(restated)
2022 2021
‘ £000 £'000
cu"emtax ot e meiee ne vee warhr e hm e v €T B A £ 1865 2427 A 8 e g
UK corporation tax charge on proft/llosst or the year {297) 1,643
Adustrrents i respect of pror per.ods 3,196 (2,868)
Forgign wax suffered 5,641 -
Tew curent e chargeficreand 77T gsa0 a2s

Deferred tax:

Onginaton and reversal of tmng dfersnces 6,227 2074
Adjustmerts in respect of pror penods (3,741) (3,598}
5,268 11,491
7,754 9567
Tax charge on proﬁtjl-loss) o-n- ordmary éctivities - 16,294 £,349

b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year

Tne wax assessed for the year is higher (2021 tugher) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the Ui of

19% 12021 19%). The differences are axplaired below

{restated)
2022 2021
T £000 £000

e o v R s e etk 9 B e TR LR ¢ st B ooyt e w7608 )

fit/floss) before tax multipled oy standard raes of
Corporson e U o 155 2020 650 9.045 @022
Ffects ol

Experses not deductinie for tax pirposes 11,723 16,076
Other effects {868) 1022
Ircome not taxaole for lay purposes (8,102) {9,350
Adustments in respect of or or periods (545} (6,865}
Effects of change 1 tax rates 5,041 11489
Totaltax charge for theyear 16,294 8,349

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the mair rate of UK corporaton tax from 19% o
256%, effective 1 April 2023, Deferred taxes on the baance shest have been measured at 25% (2021 2%%)

which reprezents thie future corporatiaon tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheer date.
+

Mote 26 detalls the prior percd adjustrnents
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& L ‘ i s T

Software Goodwill Development Total
(restated} rights

_ £'000 £000

EEGRAEEL BN o wo o (DTT TRIIR AT AT LY csan

[T

Cost

Ar 1 July 2021 (estared) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782

o through business - 30,042 4,058 34,100

fi¥ele

cormhinatons rote 271
Additicns 2125 - 1040 3,165
Ciswosals - (21.118) - (21.118)
793(} - 7930
At 30 June 2022 S 3,089 S 743 456 - 15,3i4 o 761 859
Accurﬁﬁﬁted amort;sat:on - ‘ o o o i - .
AL July 2021 frestaied) 107 159,902 1,034 161,043
Daposals - (2,462) - (2462}
Loss an translatich - {192) - (152
Impairrment - 7913 - 7913
Charge fr:r t‘ﬂ.@ yea” 12 5/ 314 523 37849
AL30June2022 19 202475 1557 204151

Net book value

At 20 June 2022 2,970 540,981 15,75_7 557,708
AL 30 June 2021 frsalalﬂfi- 857 564,700 9,182 576,739

The gain on ranslation of foreigr currency derominated goodwil is recegrised in otner cormrprerensive

ncome Armortisauon of goodwill 15 charged ¢ administration costs,
Details of the subsid aries acaures durnng tre year ended 20 Juneg 2022 car be fournd n note 27

During the year the group dispo of 2 wing farms ir Finland, a3 a result £2 5m of accumalated goodwill
o

s
amortzation was recognised in tne current year avd £15 3m gDOQW!.\ was reatised on the sae Gairon

sale recedn ced in the orofit and loss inrelation 1o thes trarsacion was £258m
rrpairrnent of £7%m has been recognised on gooowill 2021 none;

o assets have beer plecged as secunty for vabilties at year end (2021 ~ane;

i
|
!
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g NPT St

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total :

buildings stations machinery assets construction {restated}

{restated) ;

Group £000 E'ODO z'uoo £'000 £°000 1
Cost i
A July 27021 restaleg) 8531 3174467 1695437 27288 43,277 2,092,000 4‘
ACTIMONS 829 1,536 75647 50462 238,006 374,480 :

A;‘,{J.L,flfed trvf{;u{;}f‘ L‘;her'lless; 1308 - 51344 N £7663 110,315 i
COMD A ons rcte 27;

Fxffaic vaue moverment - - 3E8 - 3,294 3662
Trarsfers - 68 1,066 20936 (32,670 -
B spo"a“‘ (135; - {75,951) - - (76,086}
At303une2022 10533 319071 1745511 118,686 310,170 2504371
Accumulateddeprecnationm7W S I i
At 1 duy 2021 4,410 90,05% 414559 1290 - £10.318
Crarge for the year 183 17,130 81141 3,348 - 101,802
DDAl - - {182) 222 - {403}
X mowerrent . - 1776} - - {776}
At 30 June 2022 4~,593“ o 107,189 o 494'742 4,41? o 610,941
NetbOOkvalue e R h pnt et e i e e L it e s e
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
At EGV\JL’N’;C 2-'_]2;.”‘?65*6%-5:‘7 7 7 4,121 227408 1,280,878 25,994 43‘277 - 1,681,682

ncluded within tangitle assets are amtdhsed anance costs drectly atirbutatle w0 bringing the asset nto
use The net carrying amount of assets held urder finance leases included in plant, machinery, fixiures and
fittngs s £51,785, 000 (2021 £5:,534,000) Included in network assets is a provision of £1.023.000 for
obsolete equipment and development

- i
i

Tre Company had no tang:ble assets at 3C June 2022 (2021 nonel

Note 26 detalls thie prior pencd adjustments,
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
Eﬁg et TN T

Unlisted
investments Total
) ‘ e £'000 L '000
é;;st e b;;k o s i R ——— SO
At 1 July 2021 11,000 11,000
Addiions 129,452 129452
(165,000} (105.000)
- 35482 35452
“““““““““““ 1600 11000
Subsidiary
undertakings Total
Company o o ) z'ooko X EOOO
Cost . . o i v o g ks
At 20 June 2021 2,311678 2.511.678
Aoidinons 228,300 228,300
b\a@uSrﬂ -

At30dunezo22 7 2539978

Accumuiated impairments

2,539,978

At 30 June 2021 195,312 195,312
Reversal of aripairments (195,312} {135,312}
AL30 Jume 2022 T4 oz -
Net book value

At 30 June 2022 2 539 978

AL 20 June 2021 - R 2. 116 366 2 116 366

Derails of related underta<ings are shown inrowe 29

Uriisted ‘nvestmernts comernse t~e Grouc's nolding of the memiers capral of Tendo LU= a ienaing

pusiness. and ts shareboidng 1 Bracxen Tradng Liritec. fern co-founded Tends LLP in Cotoser 202
the rtention of comguctg a procartion of its futurs trade througr the part-erskip Ada'tions and o

30

of unbsted H‘IVE'SUF"F"”"'; re'ate o irvestments and dvestimerts in Terdo LR N ane with Fern's casn

gding Lirnted fromr

osals

N30 June 2021 £l

SR

Tracing L. 'ﬂd

ndertaxings of Fare
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
b 5 A P
Cash ncludes cash in hand and deposits repayable on cemand

Restricted cash represents cazh for which the Groug goes not have immediate and direct access of for
which reguiatory or legal reguirements restrict the use of the cash

Group
2022 2021
) g£000 £7000
g RSB AR SRR e s €2 S5 9 BT s fss,izs - 117151
Rastr cred cash 55 337
Cash at bank and in hand D 256,415 172478
Restricted cash is comprsed of £726 000 Feala in Escrow and £52.860,000 of cash nela in sabsidiaries with

D-anaual cistricution windows.

Tne Comzany had a cash talance of £6,422,000 as at 20 June 2022, none of which was restncted (2021

ncnej,
Group

2022 2021
] ) £’000 £000
Ash stock 1,538 2,195
Fuel, spare parts and consurnables 26,023 18,593
Proprty developrnent WP 156,918 e 923
184,479 94 711

The amount of stocks recognised as an expense dunng the year was £120,413,000 (2021 £41,212,000;

tncluded ‘n the fuel spare parts and consurralies stock value 5 @ provision of £390.000 for unusable “Lel
siock (2021, £45G,000) rcucing in property develooment WIP is a provision of £928,000 for warranty and
site specific provisions

There has oeen no wmparment recognised dunnc the year on stock (2021 nongl No inveniory has been
piedged as security for Lab lities (2021, none;

The Cormpany had ro stocks at 20 June 2022 (2021 rone),
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 i
A e

Group Company
{restated;
2022 2021 2022 2021

] £'000 E'OQOV ] ) £000 ) E000 :
X;ountgAf;iiing dué‘;ﬁer oneyear N crmmmmm T T o
Loans and advances 1o customers 137,662 16,128 - - f
Amounts falling due within one year 3
Loans and advarces to cLstomers 223,239 369,384 - -
Trade debuors 42,050 16,121 392 8 5
Amaunts owed by related parties incte 24) - 2,950 32,950 12751 Sj
Other debiors 20,199 24972 3,843 5008 :
Corporatior: tax e 6,603 2,527 |
Dervalive fnars al nstrurrents (note z1) 0,469 - - ';
154375 176 32.616 '

623261 598002 39,888 50.303

Loars anc advances to customers are stated net of provis-ons of £13,874,G00 (2021 £18.133,060)
Prepaymants a~d accrued income are stated net of provisions of 7759000 (2021 £13.742.000)
NG interest 1s crarged on amounts owsd by group Unaertakings, as t—e sutstancing balances are unsecured H
and repayable on d

hote 26 detal s the oror penod ad,ustrments a
|

!

eennenIE
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14 eoine Lo

Group Company

frestated)
2022 2021 2022
... EeO  E£000 _E000
Trade crediters 58,004 23,390 76
Uther taxaton and social secunty 8,161 - ‘ -
Other creditars 24,362 55506 -
Amounts due to resated parhies hote 245 - - -

Finance leases (note 16} 2,428 3147 -

BRBEh @ £ e b e SRR

Banx leans ang ovordrafts inote

Dervatrve fAinarc-sl irstrumer:s incte 21 - 143 -
Accruale and deferren: .ncome 75,465 72.087 373
256,152 202,055 449

2021
£Qon

LCERFRDTIND O AR xR G ARG A R

16

20,203

Group
2022

Amounts falling due between one and five years ~ £'000

HEE) GEEIEI TSRO

Bank loans and overarafts (note 1€) 383,070
Firance leasos (note 18] 5.899
Dervatve anancaal irstruments (nete 21) -
Otner creditors

394,333

5,364

2021
£000

o R R S RN R R

247,257
6125
5415
258,837

Group
2022
Amounts falling due after more than five years £000

2021
£00C

Barik loans and overdgratts (notr 18) 573,416
Finance leases note 18) 24,676

Cervetve anancial instrument

596,092

“otal creditors fallirg due after maore thar one year 992,425

577,235
24495
42772

644502
903,339

Tne Company nas no craditors due ir greater thar one year

Arnourts cwed to related parties are u

3

secured, non-interest Lesnng and repayabia on demand.

Mote 26 deta'ls the pror perod ad,ustrments.
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O R L LR AR e

Group
Cuc ir ore yoar
Ciue between one 371¢ five years

Dl i more than five years

2022 2021

e e e egrr £'000 £000
e S
383,070 247297

573,416 577235

T Losaz1s Canos

The Compary rad no bank lcans at 20 June 2022

The bank tzars are securea against assets of tne Group witn each loan a3 neld by the subsidiary shown below:

W ST ¥ Lim

Cedar Energy and Infrastruciure Lroied
Ehos Energy 2

Efios Erergy 3

Boocmerarg Fnergy Himicec
Daringtor Pomt Solar Faren Pty Limited

rielton Renewab'e Friergy UK Cimited

Dulacca WF FHowco PTY Lto
Elvia Hormres Himted

zZ

< Asget Managerient Lirmred

G LY A B S RO SRR AR R R LU FEE R ARATE bbb

interest rate 2022
& month SONIA plus 1L.60%
LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% -
3 month EURIBOR plus

1.20%, Fixed rate 1.70% 30.946

1.2% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079

6 month SONIA plus 1 50% 284,348

6.49% (swap rat:e C:f 4.59%‘ + 114,026
19% margin)

& month SONIA plus 2.35% 85,718

1.7% + BBSY 31,614

Fixed rate 2.5% 43

. Fo00
429,138

2021
| Foon
438140
34,395

295,344

103432

871918

SONIA replaced LISOR as ne effective intergan< lerding rate sysem from 1 January 2022

resuited in no cormmercial impact to the busress,

Finance leases

The future rmirium fina~ce lease pay nents are as folows:

Payrrents due
Mot iater than one year
Leter trar one year and not later tran five years

Later trar Gve y2ars

2022

2,428
5,899
76,461
84,788
{51,785)
33,003

go00 .

Tne rate crange

2021
JEowo

3166
6,196
72013
81,375
{47.609)
33766

renta., rerewal or purch

a
secured aga:nst the .eased assess

The Compary rad no finarce leases at 30 Jure 2022

pel
D
b
-
ur
gal
&P
[
Ql
ja)
D
3
8]
[0}
o
%)
iy
o
bl
5
IR
3
pma]
a
3
3
n
3
QO
a
[l
D
a
o]
o
)
w1
QJ
=
b
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i

Decommissioning {restated)

Group

b R B R RSP BLSS Y S L5 IED C DLP T PEeut SRR eeerEeHeARetaae @ © o B Se RS GeEIES Shrel Al e ARG HEY

At 1. Juy 2021

increase recognised n profil and ooss

increase recognised through other comprehersive inaome
I pairment

Ircrease recognised i fred assets

Recognised on subsidiary acguisitions

Adjustment in respact of gror years

Unwinding of discour

Adjustment relating te change in accountng estumate

Gain on translaton

At 30 June 2022

provision Deferred tax
£000 E'000

20439 20,933
21 11495

- 18,202

16 -
23,656 -
- (2.568)

- (5.465)

249 -
(3.373) -
15 -
41,023

w0l D ST e s

41,597

(restated)
Total

41,372
11,516
18,202
16
23,656
(3.,568)
(5465)
249
(3.373)

15

82,620

£000

ne decomrnissioning orovision -s nela o cover future oblgations fo return land on which there are

perational wind, bicrmass and sc.ar farms, to their onginal condition Tre ats are not expecter S
operationat d. b ndd soiar farms, to their onginal condition Tre amounts are rot expected (o b

utiised for in excess of 25 years
The Company had ro provisions at 30 June 2022,
Note 25 details the prior per.od adjusiments

AB Um0 D sy s e

Group
Allotted, called-up and fuily paid

ne Group and Company have the following shave capital:

2022
£'000

2021
£000

6165 (2021 1496,755 258 T .
1516522 011 {202 ,}'Z,lja?j 2581 161.662 149,576
Crchnary shares of £0 20 2ach
Company 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid - ) E'OOO o E000 ]

1.616622.011 (2027, 1.456,755,258)
Ordinary shares of £0.5.0 each

161,662

149,676

Curing the year the Group issaed 119,866 754 (2021 1.501.199.278 ) ordinary shares of £010 each for an
aggragate nominal value of £11,987,0600 (2021 £15C,120,000) Of the snares issued duning the year, totat
consideration of £203,750,000 (2022 £2.316,655,000) was paid for the shares, giving rise to a prernium of
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£1

73118,600) During the year the Group purchased ril (2021 4.444.020) of its cwn
A0 eacr with an aggregate nomrina: value of £nil 12025 £444.000;) To t:: orsideration
£~ 1

1 0;
£6.844 0001 was paig for the shares, giv ng r<e 10 a premium of (202- 399 Q00

coounung prnciptes at it was formen as gart of a groug

j
M
O
=
@]
[
&}
3_
E-’J
Q)
O
@]
g}
(]
o
o
=
(D
1
{l‘
]
D
]
&
Q
5
a1}

re capital and share orerium accourt 3 reated ag if they had always
exigted. Movermernits in share capital arissng Lotk before end after the resfructuce are reported azs movements
in the C;.’oup snare capital

.501,199,278) ord ﬂar/ snares of £0.10 each for an

1 J120,000). Of the shaes | upd cunng the year, tocal
£2,316,695,000) was paid for the shares,

21£€,575.060), Durna the year the Grous purchasea ni (2

&)
(o]
3
w
[
i

~ 4
35
)
o]

rice tC a premium of
i ‘4.4 Q)C; of 1ts cwn
orgirary shares

1 “ota. consideraticr
of Erni (2021 £6,844.0

0}
21 6,355,000

G each w'ith an aggregate nominal value of £nil (2027 £
007 was pawe for the shares, giving rise w a grerium of £

“here iz a single cass of ordinary shares There are no reztnctions on trhe disttibator of dwvidends and the
repayment of capitat

Cash flow hedge reserve
The casn flow hedge reserve 1 Lied to record transactiors arising from 1ne Group's cash fow
redging arrangernants

Merger reserve
The merger reserve anises from the dffererce betweer the fair value of the shares issues and the book
values of the subsidiaries acquired.

Group
Note 2022 2021
" " i 000 L EDOO
3,721 8570
Sale of subsidiary undertakings and acquisiion o7 _ (1842)
of nen-cortrolling interest
Totat compranensive loss attiputabie o (6,622) (4.007)

-

rOlinG Interasis

AU 20 June 2C22 (2,901) 3721
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
b 1 S R

Carrying armmounis of firarcial assets ang tatilives

Group Company
{restated! ‘
2022 2021 2022 2021
Group £000 £'000 £'000 £000

B P R PRI SRR S

Carrying amount of financial assets

truments meaasured ai amo-tised Cost 423,150 4350556 4,235 17.767

Dett

Measured at far vaiue through profl and ess - 5,469 - -

Meoasured at fair valug through cther compreharsive income

Carrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at arnortised cost 1,126,163 856,384 76 16

3

Meagsured at fair vaide throwgh other comprehiarsive income - 42,772 - -

MNote 26 de

al.s the pnor period adjustrents,

. Lt
S
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
The Group's fina~cial risk management seeks to minim’se the expasure (o market risk, credit risk, [guicity
and cash fow risk, ard erergy market nzk

a) Market risk
Energy market risk
The energy sector 1= expenencng significant turbulerce and there i a rick that forecast levels of \ncome are
not achieved due to changes nwholesale energy prices, of-take contracts or government suksigies.
Cnarges in Government pelicy, o regulator intervention may result in reduced income streams within the
group due to additional levie

(0]

Currency risk
The Group presents its conscuadated financial statemenrts In sterling and conducts business in a rumber o
&

other currences, princpally Eure and Austral'an doilar. Consecuently, the Group is exposed to farsign
exchange risk diue to exchange rale movements, which affect the Group's transactional expersss anag the

o

transiaton of earmirg and ~et assets of its nor-sterling operations

Transactional exposures

ransactona: exposures ar se from admiristrative and otmer expense in currencigs other tnan the Group's

prf‘sc wuonal currency (Sterling) The Group enters ir to forward fore

igr exchange contracts and foreign
exchange swaps 1o mitgate the exchange rae nsk for certain fore'gn cunrency payables and receipts, The
forward currency cortracts and swaps are measured at falr value, which is determined us:
technigues that utilse observable inputs Tre key mputs used in valuing the gerivatves are ine forward
exchenge rates for GBR AUD ard GBP EUR On 30 June 2022 the far vaiue of the foreign currency
contracts was an asset of Enil (2021: £6,462.000) ard a Jablity of £ni (2021 £142.003),

Transtational exposures
Balance shee! transiationat exposures arise on conscidason on the retransiaton of the talance sheet of

ron-sterling ooerations INte sterling, the Group's presentatianal currency ~re level posure is reviewed

fex
by maragement ana the cotential foreign excnange movement 1 witris ar acceptane level of
tnerefore, typicaly, tre Group's polcy t¢ nct o actively hedae these exoosures.

gk and

Interest rate risk
The Group has exposure to Auciuat.ors in nterest rates o s borrowings. Where the Growp eniers nto
e

=
borrewimg arrangemenis win floatng rane inerest, @ swap arrangement s entered inc 1o fix a portion of
S T

the interest in order (o it gate aganst an Norease in Interess crt'on of interest to ce fixed is

8
assessed on a case by £ase kasis Maragernen: can elect whetrer to hedge accounrt b
Y 3

or frese
arrargements or an ndradual transacuon nasiz and nave 2lected o aoply hedge accountirg for interest
rate swans. The swaps are basec on a onincipal arcunt of the can fac ity and matire on tne same gae.
Or 20 Sune 2022 the outstand g nterest rate swaps ~ave a m*:ar:ty roexcess of hve years anc the i

The Group 15 a short- 1o nedium-terr lencer 1o the residential oroperty rarket To tne exiert that there s

r
tion « the wvel of house prices that affects tre properties thar tne Group's loars are secured

n

<
aga-nsi, there s a risk that the Group may nct recoup its full exposure Tris s resticated by the short-term
rature of the wans and the conservatve level of loan to vaile that the Group 1s cregared to lend a

('D
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b} Credit risk
Customer credit risk is mitigated through the Group's credit control poucies, which are i nlace o ensure
that our customers have an approprate credd histary and are momitaored on an cngoing basis

c) Liquidity risk

Liguid'ty nsx are managed oy ensunng that suficient cash s availakie to fund continumg and fulure operatons,
]

Liguidity risk arsez on bank loars in place acrocs the Greuo anc is managed through careful monitoring of
covenants and sersible levels of cebt Borrowirg s o0 a long-term basis, whereas our revenue is raceived
throug~out the year as well as mterest ard redemstions o our short-term [oan ook, Cash flow risk s

nanaged through orgong cash fiow forecasting to ensure receipts are sufficient to meet habilihies as they
fall due

b I N Ea b BN o SR SR U TR

Afthe year end the Group had capital commitments as folows

2022 2021
Group £'000 £:000
Contracted ‘or b Jt net provided in these Fnang al statements 347254 30,156
Urndrawn faclties on loans fo borowers 173,600 gz2.683

At 20 June the Grous Fad total future mirimum lease payments under non-canceliabie operating leases
as fodows

2022 2021

Land and Other tand and Other

buildings buildings
e E'000 E'Dn()g‘ N _ED00 E000
P(‘ymt o . : SR —
Nos later then one year 8,707 661 8,031 749
Lates than one year and not later than five 31,627 726 30,369 1,686
years
Laer tnan fve years . 35664 e T e i 2B332 K

135 958 1,387 157,332 2444

Thne Sroup had no otner off-balance <sheet arrangements (2021 nona;.

Under sectiors 394A and 4794 of the Companies Act 20C6. the parent company Fern Trading Limited has
guaranteed alt outstanding tabilities on those companres taking the exempuon to whicn the subsidiaries st
on pages 79 to 90 were subject to at the 30 June 2022 until they are satished in full Triese habilities toral
£915m Such guaraniees are enforceable against Fern Trading Limited by any person 10 whnom any suc
lal uty iz due

Tre Company nad no capital or other commitrients at 30 June 2022,
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2E oo

On 11 Juty 2022, Ferrn Trading Development Lensed (FTDLT, 2 subsidiary of the Grouz saccessfuly sold
Darlington Point Hoitgoo Pty Umited 1o Ooiopus Australia Master Trust A small pro® of £850,000 was made
or: the sale.

Crithe 1st of December 2022, the Groop acquired rnights *o a £25rm credis voucher and the right to Lse
mobile kcenses from Three UK, via a Strategic Conneclivity Agreement, tnus makng the first stes towards
beco

rator

24 oo

Under FR5 102 33 1A disclosures nead not ge given of fransactions entersa inio between two o mare
memoers of a Group, provided trat any subs diary which 15 a party 1o tne transactcn is wholly cwned by
such a memper,

During the ye:

(D
JJ

52 050) were mrarged to the Group by COctopus

i

0

a1}
-~

1
INvestments Lirits =lated party due 0 its Sig"‘lﬂcaﬂt imfiuence over tre entity Octoous mvestrrenis
Lirnited was recharged | es totaling £10.155 (2020 £16 000 by the Group. At the

vear erd, an amount of £5,500 f2u71 £219.000)

was cutstarding whies s imcluded in trade creditors

The Group 1s entitl

d to g profit share as a resuit of sirvestrrent in Terido _LP a related party due to key

e
management personcelim cormeaen In 2022 a share of prehtequsi to £2,249.000 (2021, £443,000; nas
een recogn sed by the Groun At the year end, Groug has anonterest nothe memper’s cap tat ¢f

{ re
5,452 000 2 21 £11.000,000;) and accrued income due of £5,276,000 2021 £479,000).

The Group engages n lending act vives whicrn include balances provides 1o related partes Regarding
entities w:t key manegenent perscnnel in common, wans of £62,490,000 w\20z%_ r173 ??4 200), accrued
income of £19 789 000 (2021 £2 ) -tamc‘mg
at year ena During the year interest 5 of £7, : (2021

536,000] were recogn sed n relati

Dunng the year the Group acquire
Imvesiments Lirmmited, a reiaed part

ed by Cciopls

9 reserve COWS! CoOMmpanies from com
Ses note 27 al for deta s of the companies acquired

As at 20 June 2022 0,275 was owed Iz the Company by Bracker Trad ng wrrited, a related
party oy key mana lin common,

Other tran the transactions disciosed above, “he Company's otner related carty ransacion: were with s
wrolly owned subsidiary members of the Group.

intre opric of the directers, there s ro ubmals conroling pacty of oarent compary
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26 ey

a) Group structuring review

We Fave corducied a review of prior years' accounting treatnant of intercampany restracturng In thig

review management identined unarrortised goodwil balances i relabon to these transactions. We nave

adiusiaa the previous years 1o reflect tne implementation of amartsation bacxdated to when the relevan:

transactions occurred The accurmulates rmpact for the gosdwill amortisation in the profl and loss “or 2021

was £8m (20200 £5 3rn) the mmoverrent of £2 7 nas been restated throuchout the 2

nurabers. & sumirnary of the mpact of the Correction @ prowded oowow,

021 comparauve

Year ended Adjustments Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
{as stated} {restated)
Group £000 E'C00 £000
Goodw I 583986 (5,335) 578,653
Rewaned earnmgs 41,185 5335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Group £000 ~ Eo00 ] E'pOO
Coodwl 602711 (8.049) 594,662
Retained carnings (123,920) 8,049 (115,871}

As part of the review of tne intergroup restructunng menucnad above, managerment identified one of the
restructures had been incorectly accounied for in a sub sector of the groun. No further ermors were
discovered in the review The accumulated impact for goodwill amorusation in the profit and loss for 2022
was £2 5m (2020 £1 3m;, the movement of £1 2m has been restated throughout the 2021 cormparatve
numbers. This impact to the 2020 cpening retained earnings was offset by £2 1m written back against bad
debt expansas. Management have corrected the identified error with the following ‘mpact:

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

{as stated) {restated)

Group ) £000 £000 £'000
Goodwil S 583,988 (29,183) 554,805
Retamed earrinngs 41,185 899 42,084
Debtors 842,549 {2.724) 839,825
Creditors, aincJnts faling due witnir oneg year (232,813) 495 (232,317
Fixed assefs 1,346,655 30,512 1,377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) {restated)

Group ) ) ) o EOOO o £'000 £000
UOO’j\f\h st e et e 6027“ . ,‘&?2”7,963) S R
Retained earnings (123,920} (321) (124,241)
Debtors 600,726 (2,724) 538,002
Creditors amourts fallng dus vatnin one year {207,318} 498 {206,822)
Fixed assets 1,551,17G 30,512 1,581,682
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b) Deferred tax adjustment

We nave conducted a review Of all consoldauon entries at subsegrons of th

\

W

e croup. We have icentifieg an

arrcr relaung 1o 20°9 when deferred tax ad ustments were entered a3 a cansclidation entry and had

subisequently Not been revers

rerevant palances are correct. The error was posted at 2

ed We have checked the tax

only and has now been cored

per subsidiary account anc nave ensired that the
consoddasd level

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) (restated)

Group n £000 - _£'000 £000

Retanad carmings 41,185 (4.764) 421

Credeors amounts faiting due within ore year (232.813) 4,764 (228.045)

This nas a ock effect irto June 2021, t-e restated talances are as "Glows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2021 30 June 2021

(as stated) (restated)

Group E 000 £000 ] £fQOO

Retamcd earmngs {123,920} (4,764) (128.684)

Credisons arnounts falling due within one yvear (207,.318) 4764 (202,554)
in prepanng the tax computatons for 2022, the Group's tax advisors have noliced an overlooked

assLmption im previcus yeats tax consolidation calcuations Within the previcusy unrer'ogh
assets held with in the group some were avaiiable on a consolidated level to offset tne Group

deferred tax
deferrad (ax

habiley Onanindividual company basis the deferred tax in previcus years had beer correct ly recogn sed, A

onart of these deferred assets are inrelationto C

for within cther "ﬁfnpmhﬁns ve I~corme The accumulated impact for the tax charge in the pro

for 2021 was £15m (2020
comparafive numbers

B

A suammary of the impact of

Retainea carnngs
Cash flow heage reserve

Ceferred tax crovisons

ash flow ~edges I

the correction is orovided be'ow

Year ended
30 June 2020
(as stated)

£000

41,185
63837
(36,484}

eld wirn the group which a

Adjustment

(15.299)
(3.875)

19,174

e accounted

ensc loss

1
S IR Zm) the moveraent of 200k 1as peen restated ihrouchout the 2021

Year ended
30 June 2020
(restated)

 EO00

25886
59,962
(17,310




4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2022

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) {restated)
Group £000 E£'000 £000
Rerared earrings T az3e0) 45093 (39013
Casn Now Fiedge resarve 17,098 (2.119) 14979
Deferred 13x provisions (38.145) 17,212 (20,933
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
20 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group £'600  E000 o 000
Retained earr-\r'gs """"""""""""""" T - 41,185 (13,829; 27356
Goodwil 583588 {54,517) 549,471
Gebiors 842,549 (2,724} 839,825
Fixed aszets 1,346,655 30.512 1377167
Deterred tax provisions (36,484) 19,174 (17,310;
Cazh flow hedge reserve 63.837 {3.875) 59,562
Creditars amounts faling due within one year (232.813) 5,259 (227,554}
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Group £'000 £060 £000
Retarod carongs (123,920) (12,129 (136,049
Goodwall 602,711 (36.011) 566,700
Deptors E00.726 (2.724) 598.002
Fixed assats 1,551,170 30,512 1,581,682
Deferred tax provisicns {38,145) 17,212 (20,933)
Cashi flow hieage reserve 17098 {2,119) 14,975
Creators: amounts fallng due witqin cne year (207,218) 5259 (02.055)
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- A A ST A

a) Reserve Power acquisition

On 2 Juty 2021, the Group acguired 9 rese ve power sies through the ourchase of 100% of the share caoital
or consideration of £18

The following tatles sumimarise the consideration naic Ly the Group, the fair value of the assets aoguired,
and the liabilites assumed at the acguistion date.

Consideration

Detals of the farr value of the net assets acqlred and goodw Ll arisng are as follows:

Book vatue Adjustments Fair value
£000 £000 £000

e |

Fred assers 80788 (28,553} 52,235
Trade and other enavaiias 294 - 294
Prepayrments 635 - 635
Cashard cash ecuralenis 7858 - 7858
Trade and other crediors {(2,206) - 2,206}
i.oans (58,8@@) ] - {58,81&)

r:lrét;ssetsacquil; d : 28,553 o (28.553) -

Total consideration -

MBS b ame o S e e e 4y e e a s LR ARe L AKe ke 4 Shhee w aKe b s ae m bee Ahans caias T T T ST

Goodwdll resaitng frem the business combinalion was nil.

sl

aied staiernert of comprahersive ncomre for the year includes £45 283 000 revendes 2na a
£
I

£686,000 1 respect of tnis acauisition.
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b) Doveryard Limited acquisition
O 22 October 2021, the Group acquired Doveryard Lirrited and 18 subsidiary trrough the purchase of
100% of tine share capita! for consideration of £13 414,000

The folowing ables summanse the consideration paid by the Group, the fa r value of assets acquired, and

liabilities assumed at the acguisitionr dae

Cons:derat:on E'0O0

S BA T R H S SRR 8 A HY RS B R R S A £ Y s P A SR B S R E RS i R S S0 A 5 Bt v R e 6 At S v 07T $T0%0 LT N7 OUROCCARER KGR E CE 0 FRRRE R RS W BELN

Casn 12.377

blrectlv attr.butaple costs 1077

Total con5|derat10n 13 414

Details of the farr value of the net assets acguired snd goodwill ansing are as foliows

Book Adjustments Fair
values value
o e et e £'000 £'000 .. E000

Fixed assets 569 - 569

Trade and ofher recelvables 52 - 52
Frepayments and accrusd ncomre 193 -

Tra Je cxr"d utr‘er \,redltorc {467) -

Net assets acquured o e 347W T

G(Jgdwm S L . e e e e e

Total con5|derat|on e e e o+ o e 1 e e o e 1+ <o e - e o e e s o 13,414

Goodw Il result ng from tne business combination was £13,067.000 and nas an estimated use®ut life of 2%
set

years, reflecting the lifespan of the assets acquired,

Tne consolidated statement of comprehensive .ncome for the year inc.uces £nit of revenue and a loss
before tax of £123.000 in respect of this acguisiuon
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c) Dulacca acquisition
On 27 August 2021, the Group acquireg Dulacca WF Holdoo PTY Ltd and s three subsidian
curchase of Z00% of the share captal for consderation of £115,680,000

s through the

The following tables summarise te conzideration paid by the Group, the fair value of the assats acqu red,

and the latilites arie at the acquisiton date A list of the entities accurred neluged in note 25
Constderatlon - AUD 000 Exchange Rate 6’000
217,557 18904 11’*,08"
G vectwy attributanle costs 1126 1.8904 595
Total consn:!eratlon 218,683 115,680

Details of the far vawue of the net assets acouired and intangil'e arising are as folows

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair

values value values value

o .. AUD'G00  AUD'000  AUDDOO  E'000 £000  £000

Trade and cther recerabies 10,131 - 10,131 5357 - 5,357

Casnand cash eguvalents 102.072 - 103.072 54,525 - 54,525

A(_r rua‘ amu {10,952) - (10, 952) 15, 79 - (5,793)
Netassetsacquired 208,884  _ 209884 111026 - 11, 026
mangiels - S 8799"-w R 4534 ‘

Totalt.:.o.:-;;;:deratlon 777777777777777777777777 S 218, GBSMW - 7 115 580

Inzangitles resuiing from the asset purchase was £4.654,.000 and fas ar estimared useful life of 30 years,
ecung the ufespan of the assets acguired

Ihe corsolidated statemert of comarehersive income for the year includes £nit of revenie and a icss after

tax of £237.000 1n respect of this acquisition
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d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition

On 31 January 2021, the Grouo acquires Zestec Asset Mangement L mited a pro ect sources for rooftop
selan, through the purchase of 100% of the share capital for consideraucn of £4,765,000

The folowing tables cummarise the corsideration paid oy the Group, the far va.ue of assets acguirad, and
lak.lines assLmed at The acquisiticn date.

Consideration £'000

AL b kB RS Y BARRRY g Trah b ARIE AL reana 1 s e’ b b o DAmPO rw s REEERRREREE ARG e hmkoban s x o eI T % T E R DR A bk S R R B ERA DL

[

Cash 3672
Deferren consderation -
Direcly attributabie costs 1.093

'fét_éic.onsidération . . o 4,765

Cetails of the fair value of the net assets acquirea and goodwill ansing are as ‘ollows

Book Adjustments Fair
values vatue

o ) ' £000 £000 £'000
lwed assels ‘ . 156 o 156
Trade and other creriitors (574) - {(574)
Trade ard other recervabies 400 - 400

Cash ana cash eguivalents 1019 - 1,019
{(46) - 7 (46}

Cther wans

Netsssesacaured T ey - 055
3810

Goodwill
Total consideration 4,765

Goodwiit resulting from the business combinat on was £3 810,000 and has an eztirnated useful Ufe of 10
years, reflecting the estimated tfespan of tne assets acquired

The consoldates staternent of comprehensive incorne for the year inciudes 2158 000 of revenue and a 10ss

tefore tax of £454, 000 in respect of this acguisiion
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e} Elivia Homes acquisition
On 22 May 2022, tre Greup acquired Bivis Foldings omited ard its subs oares, through the purchase of
100% of the share capital for consideration of £21.684,000

The following tables summarise the consideration paid by tne Group. Lthe fair value of azsats acauired, anac

liabiiities assumead at the acguisition date. A list of the entit es acguired are included in note 2%

Consideration £000

e R ATy R A PEEEERE S R R EANEKY ke Kt n st d o T fa NI T A g a

Total cor;.s.ideration - T “"”51'684

Detais of the fair value of the nes aisets acguired and goroaw L arising are as follows:

Book Adjustments Fair

values value

. e o E000 £o00 . ...fF000

wadgcet R e A A8 K BT e TSR A 418 e P
‘Mangiole asscts 11,767 - 11,767
S1ock 69,9353 - £9,929
Trade and oter deblors 2.60% - 2,609

Cash and cash ecu valents 11,603 - 11603

G B R B

Accruass ana aeferred ncome (420} - {420}
Brovisions (930) - 930)
Ceferrad tax 6,000 {1,400) 4,600
(69.453) - (69.453)
31,533 (14000 30133
Gosowil S S e
Totalnonsideration o - S - - 31684

Trade and otrer credicrs

Goodwil resolhing from the tusiness combination was £1,551,000 and has an est matea uze’ul life of 10
years, reflecting the lfespar of tne assets acquired.

The consclidaied statemert of comorehers ve incorre for the year ncludes revence of £25,034,000 arc 3
‘ ¥

nrofht before tex of 1,502,000 in respect of th s acqgu's.uon
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280 o s TN Tt e

Our reported resuts are prepared :n accordance with United Kingdon Accounting Standa nclizding
andard 102, as deta'ec 1in the Financial Statements start ng on page 3 f hie Arinaal
at have been

r-'

Firancial Repertrg 5

Reporg 'n measunirg our serformance, the financial measures that we use nclude thoss tr

derives from our reported results i order (o edminate factors that distort year-on-year compansons Thnese
e considered non-GAAR financ at measures

Net debt

We provide ret debt in adcition to cash and gross dett as o way of assessing our overall ¢ash position and it

is corrputed as follows

2022 2021
~ £000 £'000
e R R
Other loan 5364 -

- 1049582 871,518
o gt

Net debt e i e o e e e e e e 795, 157 599 ae
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EBITDA

Earrings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (E3ITDAY s caiculated by adjusting profit after
tax for interest, tax. depreciation and amerusaten, in addiion 1o income and expenseas that do not relate 1o
the day o day operators of tne Group. We crovide EBITDA In addinen (o profit after tax as it allows us o
assess our performance without the effects of Prancirg and capital expenditures.

The following table details the adiustnents made o the reported resuts

trestateq)
2022 2021

Note ;‘900 B £005

broﬁtl(l;ss) for thg E;ancial year S o 31.%10 (310\15
Add

Amortsation of intangicie assots Z 37,849 37704
Impairmeact of intanginie assets 8 7913 -
Cepreciation of langiole assets 2 101,802 84697
Interest payaole and srvnar expenses 6 33,554 36067
Exceptional mems 1,105 -
Tax / 16,294 8,349
Less

neome from ctner fxed ascet iInvesime s (5,249} (445}
Shiare of Gperaling proft o joint veriure - (1,755)
Proft on disposal of subsicranes (29.532) {28,568)

nterest rece vable ara smilar incoms

EBITPA

3] (130}

194,916

(997)
104,036

o

Note 26 detsis the pricr peried adjustments




4] FINANC

AL STATEMENTS 30 JU

NE 2027

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

P I O T R T -

Cetalz of the subsidiary undertakings are as follows

Name

A S P T S

Abbor< Rinoten ,o\ar Energy Holding Lited™
Adalinda Solar 5PV 1 lirmited”

Agnso -2 SARLY

Al Metwaorks L ted™

Alipoirts Fiore Limized®”

Auchencarrorh Erergy Limited®”
Auquhing Land Cormgany Limited™™™
Averue Solar Farm Limited™
Banbury Power Lirnited™
Gatisolare 5 SARLY

Eatisolzire 7 SARL®

Beetley Erergy Limitea™
Be'ghton Energy Limited”
Bemnneun Wind Farm Ltd™
Beilhcuse Energy Limited™

Birch Estate Solar Lirmited™

Blaby Sclar Farm Limited™

BNRG IOW Limiteg™

Bolam Energy Limited™
Boomerang Energy Limited
Boreas Energy Limited”

Bratton Flemirg Lirrited™

Breck Solar Limited™

Bryn Yr Odyn Solar Developrnents Holdings
Limited™

Bryr Yr Cdyn Solar Developments L
Bury Power Lirnized”
Cadoxton Reserve Power Limited™

Calcias Energy Limited”™

Cark Limtea”

EREATE

Country of Class of
mcorgor’a;t!&nim shares ‘
UK Ord:nary “
UK Qrdinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Crdinary
LK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
France Crdinary
France Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LUK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
Ireland Ordinary

. Holding

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principatl

actlwty

Bty PR e i R <

Heolding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

olding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Dormant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Holding company

Energy generation
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Country of Class of
Name | incorporation _shares
Caswell Sotar Fa!r;‘ Lamited™ UK Ordinary
Cathien Energy Limi.teg®™ UK Ordinary
Causilgey Limied™ UK Ordinary
Cedar Energy ard Infrasiucidre Limiterd UK Ordinary
CEPE Berceranne SARLY France Ordinary
Eentfa ri Eow'?inr;e de Producton d” Energie de France Ordinary
Grandbas SARL
CEPE deis Salesze SARLY France Ordinary
CEPE del acompe (Centrale Ecd‘ler_wre ge France Ordnary
Proouctuon d Eneqgie de Lacombel SARL
CEPE de Marsanre SARLY France Ordinary
CEPE Hauw: du Saule’ France Ordinary
CEPE ue a Roche Quatre Riveres SATLY France Qrdinary
CEPE du pays de St Sere SARLT France COrdinary
CERS S AL France Crdinary
Chelson Meadow Energy Limited” UK Ordinary
Chishor Sotar Farm Holdings Lrnited™ UK Ordinary
Chittening Sotar Two Limited™ UK Ordinary
Cilgwyn Znergy Limited” UK Ordinary
Ciann Farm Linmited™ UK Ordinary
Claramaond Solar 5Py 1 Limited™ UK Ordinary
CLP Developments Lmited’ UK Ordinary
CLP Erwircaas Limiteg™ UK Ordinary
CLP Servizes Limited UK Ordinary
CLPE 1531 Limited” UK Ordinary
CLFE 1599 Cmiteg” UK Ordinary
CLFE Howirgs Limitea™ UK Ordinary
CLPE Frojects 2 Limitez™ K QOrdinary
CLPE Pronects 2« rmuten”™ UK Crdinary
CLPE Proiects 3 Limited” UK Ordinary
CLPE ROCZ =1 Limmiteg™ UK Ordinary
CLPE RQC - 2 _rited” UK Qrdinary
CLPE ROC -3 Limeted UK Qrdinary

1G0%
100%
1064
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100

>

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

Principal

Hg{f{ing activity .

Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Erergy generation
Dorrnant company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of OgM
SRrvICes

Dormant comgany
Dormant company
Holding companry
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Erergy generation
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Name

T T LTy JC PSP AR IR

CL.PERQC - 3A Limited™

CoPE ROC - 4 Limited”™

CLPE ROC - 44 Limited™

Clyne Power Limited”

Colsterworth srergy Limited™
Cernon Brndges Energy Limitea™
Cotesbach Energy Lirrited™

Cour Wind Farm {(Scotland) Lirmniteg!™

Crapnelt Farm Limied™

Crayfern Homes (Scuth Coast) Limited!®

Crayfern Limited*

Crayfern Sunley (Sinfald) Liried*™

Craymareh Limited”

Cressing Soelar Farm Limited™
Cualvery Power Limited™”
Cynen Power Limitec™

Dafen Reserve Power Limited™
Cairy House Solar Limited™

Deepdale Farm Solar Limited™

Coveryard Limmited™

Drapers Farm Limited™

Dulacca Energy Project Co PTY Lid!?
Dulacca Energy Project FinCo PTY Ligte
Dulacca Energy Project Holdco Co PTY Ltd™?
Dutacca WF Hodeo 2TY g™

Dyffryn Brodyr L mited™

Eakring Lrnited”

Flecsol Camargue SARL®
Elecsol France 7 SARL?
Elecsol France 15 SARL®
Elecsol france 15 SARL

Etecsol France 19 SARL?

Country of Class of
“Wivncorporation "blf\bgres ]

‘UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
K Ordinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 160%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Crdinary 100%
UK Grdinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
Australia Ordinary 100%
Australia Ordinary 100%
Australia Ordinary 100%
Australia Ordinary 100%
UK Ordinary 100%
LK Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 90%
France Ordinary 90%
France Ordinary 100%
France Ordinary 100%

Principal

Holding activity

B R i e o e N EEEE

Energy gemeratbg
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Developrment of
building projects

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
building projects

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation

s
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Name

Elecsol Frarce 22 SARL®

Elecsot Frarce 74 SaRL*

Elecsol Frarce 25 SARL®

Elecscl Frarce 28 SAR.?

Elecsol Frarnce 41 SARL®

Elecsol Haut Var SARLY

Elios Energy 2 France SAS?

Elios Energy 2 Limited

Ehos Frergy 3 France SASY

El'os Energy Holdings 2 Limited™
Elics Energy Holdings 3 Limited”
Elios Energy Holdings Limited™

Elos Rerewable znergy Limited™

Elvia Developrnent Finance Limited*?

Elivia Holdings Lirmited

Euvia Homes (Centrali L'miteg!t

Elivia Homes (Dorrant 2] Lirited ™!

Flvia Horres (Grange Road) Lirried?

Elria Homas (Netley) Umiteg™!
Eliviz Hornes {Scuthern) Limited?!
Elvia Homes {Suri ton} Limuted!t

Elivia Homes Limiteg*

m

vy g Ox

wvia South Limiteds®

™

[N

o

Country of
incorporation

R R AR Y L g

France
France
France
France
France
France
France
UK
France
LK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

Class of Principal
shares Holding activity )
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Ordmary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Crdinary 10G% Energy generation
Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ordinary 1002 Energy generation
Ordinary 100% Hoiding company
Crdinary 100% Holding compary
Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ordinary 100% Holding company
Crdinary 100% Holding comparny
Ordinary 100% Holding company
Ordinary 100% Holding company
s Construction of
Crdinary 100% domestic buildings
Ordinary Financial services
Deferred 100% holding com arw.r‘eC
Preferance § compariies
) . Construction of
Crdinary 100% domestic buildings
. o Construction of
Ordinary 100% domestic buildings
. R Construction of
Ordinary  100% o mestic buildings
Ordinary ~ 100%  Developmentof
building projects
. o Construction of
Crdinary 100% domestc buildings
Construction of
1009
Crdinary 100% domestic buildngs
: o, Development of
Crdinary 106% building projects
o . Developrment of
Ordinary 100% building projects
Construction of
- o domestic buildings
Ordinary 100% Buying and selling of
own real estate
Ordinary 100% Construction of

domestic buldings
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Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares __Holding activity

B RS RS S  © RES U e en T e T 6 BT an B 2 0 da e B

Construction of
domestic buildings

Elivia Southem Limitea?* LUK Ordinary 100% Buying and seliing of
own real estate
Ellicombe Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Energy project
Energy Power Resources Lirited™ LK Crdinary 1003% (:neavri?éfr:z:i and
services
EPR Ely Limited™” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Eye Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Glerford Limted” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Renewatle Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
EFR Scotland Lmited®” Uk Crdinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Thesford Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Eucalyptus Erergy Howings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Eucalyptus Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Feltweall Energy Limted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Zrergy Cour Helaings Limited” UK Crdinary 100% iHelding company
Fern Znergy Heldings Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Helding company
Fern Zrergy Limnited”™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern triergy Wind Holdings Lirrsted™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding compary
Fern ~ibre timited”™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding campany
Fern Healthcare Holdings Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern infrastructure oimited™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Renewszble Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Rooftop Solar (A} Lirnited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar (BED)™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generat:on
Fern Roclop Soiar (Zestec) Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Trading Development Limted™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Trading Group Limited UK UK 100% Holding company
Fern UK Power Developments imited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Florophos Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
Four Burrows Limited” UR Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Fraisthorpe Wind Farrn Limited”™ UK Ordinary 100% tnergy generation
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Name

Garlaff Enérgy Lirrited?
Giganet rizre Lid”
Gigaret Lirmited”™
Glenchamber Wing Energy Limted™™™
Grenge Wind Farrm Limuted™”
Guardbrice SP z oot

Faroourne Sower Limited™

Haynakar (Mount Milly wtd™

Hayrnaker (Natewood) Holdimgs Lim e’
Haymaker (Natewood) Ltd™

Haymaker (Caxiands) Hoidings Lirm:seg™
Haymaker (Oaklanast Lid™

Flein Power 7 Lirrited”

Hewr Power Limited™

Higher Knapo Farm Limited™

Hi. End Farm Linied™

Hallsrmaor Limited™

Huid Reserye Power Limited™

Hurst SPY 1 Lmitea™

Immingnam Power Limiteg™

Irevell Power Limitea™

Jamescon Roaa Energy .imited”

Jurassic Fiore =oldirgs Limited™
Jurassic Fipre Lmted

i Power Lirmpten™

ham Solar Lates™

Littie T Solar Lirmied™
Littleton Solar Farm Lemitea™
LLU Comrmumications Ltd™

Slalala) oy ~ -
Logacr Power Lirted

b s FE TR A EEE R eb 4 2k n €

Country of

Class of

incorporation shares

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
Poland
K
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

Principal

Holﬁing activity

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1060%
100%
100%
10G%
160%
100%
100%
iG0%
100%
100%
100%
100%
80%

SG%

100%
100%
160%
1007%
100%

100%

100%

Darmant company

Fibre network
production

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generatian
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Erergy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Eriergy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Erergy generation
Erergy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Erergy generation
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Name .

Lovecean Limited™
Lurminance Zolar Lirried”
Miz Solutons Limited”
Manstor Thorne Limited™
March bnergy Limited”™
Marder Power Lirrited™
Marley Thatcn Solzr Limited™
Meadows farm Limited™
Melbourn Soiar,urmteu"
Mettor LG Energy Lirmited”

Meiton LG Hold:ng Limited ™

Meiton LG ROC Limited™

Me ton Renewable Energy (Foldings) Lirmited™

Meiton Renewable Energy Newcc Limitea”™
Metton Renewable Energy UK Limited
Mgl K Farm Solar Limited™

Mingay Farm Hold ng Limited ™

MSP Decoy ctg”™

MSE Strete Ltd”™

MSP Tregassow Limited”

MTS Hatchlands Solar Ltg™

MNevern Power Limited”

Meyy Row Farm Limited™

MNewliands Sciar Limited™

Ninris Farm Limitec™

Nortn Perrott Sruit Farm Lirited™
Nertwach Power Limited”™

MNotos Eneqgy Limited™

Ogmere Power Limated”

Oldhall Energy Recovery Holdings Limited™

Gne Ashford Healthoare Limited

Cne Hatheld Hospial Limited

oy e

Country of Class of Principal
incorggration Sha".e,ﬁ,,.m,,,:,,~ Holding actiﬂt&!‘w

UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generaticn
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Crdinary 160% Energy generaticn
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary  100% ’zéﬁéfﬁ;‘”g

UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Heolding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
K Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 89% E;%Y;;]r?;sfservices
UK Ordinary  90% Provision of

healthcare services
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'ztﬁcare Parirers Limited

COrta Wedgehill Solar Holdings Limited™
Orta Wedgenill Solar Limited™

Palfreys Barton Limited”

Parciau Hoildngs Limited”

Farciau Lirued”

Park Brozdoard Limitec™

FPearmat Solar 2 _td”™

Eitchford ([Condover Arrhela & Stockoateh;
Lraited™

Pitts Farm Limited™
Forthes Sclar Limmited”
Pyms Lane Solar Ltd™

Oueens Park Road Energy Lirmited”
Rangefore Care Limied’”
Rangeforo Cherizey Limited™
Rangeforc Crrencaster Limited”
Rangeford Dorking Lirnited™
Rangeforc Holdings _imited™

Rangeforc Pickerirg Limited”™

w

Rangeforc RAP Limited”™

Rangeford Retrement Livrg =oldings ctd”

SFP Fiore Lirmses®

O Gt 27 LT LS N

Country of Class of
incorporation shares

UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LUK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

Principal

Holding ;;tivity

R ) S AN PR o

85%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy generation

Erergy generation
Hotding company
Energy generation

Erergy generation

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirement village
development

Retirement village
development

Retirerment village
development

Holding cormpany

Retirerment village
development

Retirement village
development

Holding campany

Retirement viliage
devetopment

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
oroduction
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

S v i £ b BRSO3 2 G £ AT, e D R RS BRI 0

Singrug Hoidings Limited™
Srgrug Lmitea™

S HEls Lare {Ragdalel Lrited™

r

Skelbrooke Cneqgy Limited™
imit

Siaughtergate Limited”

Snetterion Rernewable Power Fuels Limited™

Snetterton Rerewabie Power Howdings Limited™
Snetterton Renewable Power Limiteg™
Solarfl LPOZ SARL®

Solarfi SPOT SARL®

Solarfi SPO2 SARL!

Sclarfi P04 SARL®

Sclarh ZPO5 SARL?

Solarf SPOS SARL

Solarfi SPLD SARL®

Seutheorbe Farm Limited™

St Asaph Power Limited™

Steadfast Parkhouse Scolar Limited™
Steacfast Rudge Salar Lia™

Steacfast Shuston Belinger Solar Limited™
Stellar Power _irnited™

Stoneyhill Erergy Limited®

Sulis Erergy Limited™

Surrmerston Energy Limited®”

Sunley Crayfern Lavant LLPY
Swish Fibre Contractmg Lrmited®
Swish Filbre Lamited®

Swish Fibre Networks Lrd®

Swish F bre Services Linvted®
Swish F bre Yorkshire®

Swish Trading Lemited™

Country of

incorporation shares

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
France
France
France
France
France
France
France
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

UK

LK

Class of

Principat

Holding activity

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordirary
OCrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
NA

Crdinary
Crdinaty

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
lOOi
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
50%

100%
80%
100%
80%

100%

80%

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Supply of biomass
fuel

Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generafion
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Eneargy generation
Dormant company
Holding company
Energy generation
NA

Fibre network
production

Holding company

Fiore network
production

Fibre netwaork
production

Fibre network
production

Holding company

Holding company
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S

TGC Sowar 63 Lmiteg™

TGO Solar 83 Lmited™

P s e e ARRKERIE LRI R LR N,

Trie rern Power Corrpany Limited”

The Holl es Solar Farm Lirrited”

Thoreshy cstate (3uahy] Limited™

Tidlingnam Fower Lim-ted™
Toghils Encrgy |imiteg”
Tredown Farm Lirited™
Turves Solar Uirnieo™
UKSE 15 Selar uritec™

Un:ted Mines Energy Limited”

VCSE Lrd”

Vectona Solar Lirmited™
Voriers Energy Limited
Voinfy Lirvated”
Vostafrarce 01 SARLY
vaiafrance 05 SARL”

Volafrance 13 SARLY

Voiafrarce SARL*

Vorboss Limited'

YVorboss US Inc®
Wadsw ck Gresn Liried™
Wadsw ok Greer Prooerty Sen

Viararagton Sower mtes’

dces Limited™

Country of
int;orporation

o Ji Y
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

UK
UK

UK

France
France
France
France

UK
USA
UK

UK

UK
UK
UK
Ui
UK
UK

Class of
shares )

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Qrdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Principal
Holding acifivity
100% Eéergy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Holding company
100% Energy generation
100% Erergy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Holding company
100% Energy generaticn
100% Energy generation
100% Erergy generation
100% Energy generation
100% Holding company
oo o
100% zggggsnt village
005 o e
100% Energy generation
100% Holding company
L00% Energy generation
100% Energy generaticn
160% Energy generation
100% Energy generation
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Country of Class of Principal
Name oo e e TCOTPOrtiON  shares Holding activity
WE’“CfJenEﬂPrgy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wharf Power Lirnited” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whiddon Farrn sited™ UK Ordinary 100% Ernergy generation
Wainney Hill Erergy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wincelie Solas Holdings Lirmitend™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
Waolverhampion Powar Ltd" UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Wryde Croft Wind Farm Limited!*” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bradford Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WEE buliavingtor Foldings Limitec™ UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
W5T Huliavington Lmited”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Park Wal Lirmited™ UK Orchinary 100% Energy generation
WEE Pyde Crove Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Zestec Ascet Management Lirmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Cuckea Internet Ltd 31/08/2022
Vit Deg ral Linitea 13/07/2022
406 Limited 22/11/2022

oy

"Subsicdares oxempt from andit by virtue of s480A of tha Compames Act 2006
Subsidiar.es exerript from audt by virtae of s479A of the Campanies Aci 2006
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D|ssolved or scid dur;ng the year and up until s:gmng

T v e ket aanaaas R AR s

Beirneun Hcldmgs w_-m\ted

Ridge Wind Acguisition Limtad
Ferr Energy Ridge'Wind Acguisitions Limited
Forr tnergy RidgsiWind Ho'dirgs Lurised
Farn Energy Partnerships —oldings Limited
Fraisthorpe (Rciang; Lirited
B Cidhall £rergy Recovery Limuted
Comm21 Lid

Uariingon Point Howco Pty Limited

Dartington Poirt Sotar Farm Pry Limited
Darlimgzorn Pcint Subholden Pty Lirmited

MNordic Powes Jeveloprment irmited

Voyrinkangas Wind Farm Oy

Saumamaia Wina Farm Cy

Date

o xS ey o B BNt e T

2010772021
20/07/2021
14/09/2021
21/05/2021
21/09/2021
29/03/2022
13/09/2022
15/09/2022

J8/07/2022

0B/C7/2022
08/07/2022
23/12/2021
23/12/2021
23/12/2021

office of all comparies lisied apove is 20 6fn Floor, 33 =00, Llondon, Engand, ECIN 2T
except ‘Cr TI0se sel out beows

1 ul Grzybowska 2/29, CO-131, Warsaw, Polanc
2 Pnzent Masons LLP, Capital Square, 58 Marrizon Street, Edimburgn, Szotland, EF3 38P

5 1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 AP

5  €th Flzor, 2 Grand Canal Sguare, Dubiin 2, D02 A342, retand
& The Carrage House, Siatior Works, Stator Roazd, Clavercor, Warwckshre, wated Kingdom, CV3E 8PE

7. Zore industnie e de Courtine 115 Rue DU Mourelet 84000 Avignon, France

8 13 Sausbury Place, London, England, Wik 152

¢ Tre Corcoration Trust Compary, Corporaton Trust Center, 1209 Crange Street, Wimngion 29801
Unted States
100 4tn Bwoor Salvre Court 20 Castie Terrace, Edinourgh, Scotana, EXD 22N

11 Apc.o House Mercury Par< Wycombe Lane Wochurn Green, High Wycoroe, England, P10 OH=

L Melbourne, Victona, 3000, Austraaz
13, Zeaufort Coort, £39 Farm Lare, <ngs Lang.ey, Herfordenre, WA 31K
14, 7-8 Swatfora Place, Lomdon, Ergard, WiC 1AY

The cirectors beleve that the carvyirg valug of e irvazireris 5 supoored by ther




5{ APPENDIX — SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern’s share price has performed in line with targets

Fern Tradirg Limited is an uniisied company evary month, our Board of Directors agrees a pnce at which it

wili be willing 1o 1ssue new shaes The share price is unaudited

Trie higares below incluge the share price of the previous parent (now Fern Trading Grouo Limited) as well

as this entity.

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited
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Ferformance is calculated based on the saie price for Fern's shares at 2 Jure each year The share price is
not subject to audit by Ermst & Young LLP

Jiea

Annual disorete performancs

Financial Year Discrete share price performance

June 2021-22 9.91%

June 2020-21 4.87%

June 20197—;20 S R 0.373%7

June 2018-19 6.23%

]uﬂe 201718 e e e e w e a —e 195% AU
June20l6-7 s5a%
June 2015-16 | | o 3.83% |
June 2013-14 3.72%

Juné 2022-13 o 3.97%

June 20701-12 1.02%

Sourze Jctopus Investrents Limited, 2 Jung 2022



6 | COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors and advisers

Drectors P Repgistered offics

PS Latham 6th Floor, 33 Folborn,

KJ Willey P London, Engana ECUN 2HT
PG Barlow

indepemndent auditors

L Arthur (appcinted 1 July
i oErrst & Young LLP
Bedford House,

Getopus Company Secretanal Services Lim ted ! 16 Bedford Street,

Congarny secratary

i Belfast BT2 707
Lompany number
12601636 :

Forward-loocking statements

Tore Annua. Repcrt coniains certain forward-lookirg statements related 1o the Company s future busines

anc financial performarce and future events or developnents, rnerits are pased on the cuyrrerd
S

<rowiedge and expeciations of maragement and are supject to assumotons, nsks ard urcertanties, some

of which are reared to facrors th

at are beyond the contro of the Company Accordngly, no assurance can
be giver ¢at any particular expectation will be met and forwars- Goking staternients regarding past trene
activities srouid not be taxer as a representalion that such trends or activives wiil continde in the future Past
cerformance carnot be reeq on as a gu de to furure performarce Nothing in this Arnuzl Report should Ge
con ed as 2 profit forecast




